
 

 

 

GLOSSARY 

 
 
Accessibility 
indicators 

Explore whether the intended beneficiaries are able to access services 
or outputs.  

Accountability 
documents 

Documents used by executive authorities to give “full and regular” 
reports on the matters under their control to Parliament and provincial 
legislatures as prescribed by the Constitution. This includes plans, 
budgets, in-year and Annual Reports.  

Activities  The processes or actions that use a range of inputs to produce the 
desired outputs and ultimately outcomes. In essence, activities 
describe "what we do". 

Adequacy 
indicators 

The quantity of input or output relative to the need or demand. 

Annual Report  A report to be prepared and submitted annually based on the 
regulations set out in Section 121 of the Municipal Finance 
Management Act. Such a report must include annual financial 
statements as submitted to and approved by the Auditor-General. 

Approved Budget  The annual financial statements of a municipality as audited by the 
Auditor General and approved by council or a provincial or national 
executive.  

Baseline  Current level of performance that a municipality aims to improve when 
setting performance targets. The baseline relates to the level of 
performance recorded in a year prior to the planning period. 

Basic municipal 
service 

A municipal service that is necessary to ensure an acceptable and 
reasonable quality of life to citizens within that particular area. If not 
provided it may endanger the public health and safety or the 
environment.  

Budget year  The financial year for which an annual budget is to be approved – 
means a year ending on 30 June.  

Cost indicators  The overall cost or expenditure of producing a specified quantity of 
outputs.  

Distribution 
indicators 

The distribution of capacity to deliver services.  
 

Financial 
Statements 

Includes at least a statement of financial position, statement of 
financial performance, cash-flow statement, notes to these statements 
and any other statements that may be prescribed. 

General Key 
performance 
indicators 

After consultation with MECs for local government, the Minister may 
prescribe general key performance indicators that are appropriate and 
applicable to local government generally.  
 

Impact  The results of achieving specific outcomes, such as reducing poverty 
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and creating jobs. 
Inputs  All the resources that contribute to the production and delivery of 

outputs. Inputs are "what we use to do the work". They include 
finances, personnel, equipment and buildings. 

Integrated 
Development Plan 
(IDP) 

Set out municipal goals and development plans.  

National Key 
performance areas  

• Service delivery & infrastructure 
• Economic development  
• Municipal transformation and institutional development  
• Financial viability and management 
• Good governance and community participation 

Outcomes  The medium-term results for specific beneficiaries that are the 
consequence of achieving specific outputs. Outcomes should relate 
clearly to an institution's strategic goals and objectives set out in its 
plans. Outcomes are "what we wish to achieve". 
 

Outputs  The final products, or goods and services produced for delivery. 
Outputs may be defined as "what we produce or deliver". An output is 
a concrete achievement (i.e. a product such as a passport, an action 
such as a presentation or immunization, or a service such as 
processing an application) that contributes to the achievement of a 
Key Result Area. 

Performance 
Indicator 

Indicators should be specified to measure performance in relation to 
input, activities, outputs, outcomes and impacts.  An indicator is a type 
of information used to gauge the extent to 
which an output has been achieved (policy developed, presentation 
delivered, service rendered) 

Performan ce 
Information 

Generic term for non-financial information about municipal services 
and activities. Can also be used interchangeably with performance 
measure.  
 

Performance 
Standards: 

The minimum acceptable level of performance or the level of 
performance that is generally accepted. Standards are informed by 
legislative requirements and service-level agreements. Performance 
standards are mutually agreed criteria to describe how well work must 
be done in terms of quantity and/or quality and timeliness, to clarify the 
outputs and related activities of a job by describing what the required 
result should be. In this EPMDS performance standards are divided 
into indicators and the time factor. 
 

Performance The level of performance that municipalities and its employees strive 
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Targets:  to achieve. Performance Targets relate to current baselines and 
express a specific level of performance that a municipality aims to 
achieve within a given time period.  
 

Service Delivery 
Budget 
Implementation 
Plan 

Detailed plan approved by the mayor for implementing the 
municipality’s delivery of services; including projections of the revenue 
collected and operational and capital expenditure by vote for each 
month. Service delivery targets and performance indicators must also 
be included.  
 

Vote:  One of the main segments into which a budget of a municipality is 
divided for appropriation of money for the different departments or 
functional areas of the municipality. The Vote specifies the total 
amount that is appropriated for the purpose of a specific department or 
functional area.  
Section 1 of the MFMA defines a “vote” as: 
a) one of the main segments into which a budget of a municipality is 
divided for the appropriation of money for the different departments or 
functional areas of the municipality; and 
b) which specifies the total amount that is appropriated for the 
purposes of the department or functional area concerned 
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APPENDICES 

 
 

APPENDIX A - COUNCILLORS COMMITTEES ALLOCATED AND 

COUNCIL ATTENDANCE 

SURNAME NAMES FULL 

TIME / 

PART 

TIME 

PARTY  COMMITTEES PERCENTAGE 

COUNCIL 

ATTENDANCE  

PERCENTAGE 

COUNCIL 

NON 

ATTENDANCE 

APOLOGIES  

Mofokeng  Mahole Simon Full 

time 

ANC - 100% 0 

Modisakeng Busisiwe Joyce Full 

time 

ANC Elections, Gender, 

Ethics, Rules, 

Petitions  

100% 0 

Sale Masabata 

Christinah 

Full 

time 

ANC Elections, Ethics, 

Rules 

      88.8% 11.2% 

Mahomed  Yusuf Joseph Full 

time 

ANC  77.7% 22.3% 

Gamede Lulama Shirley Part 

time 

ANC Gender 55.5% 44.5% 

Mncube Busisiwe Full 

Time 

ANC        88.8% 11.2% 

Masilo Johanna Part 

time 

ANC Gender , MPAC, 

Petitions 

100% 0 

Majola Abram Kuki Part 

time 

ANC MPAC 100% 0 

Tsokolibane Maipato Elisa Full 

time 

ANC  66.6% 33.4% 
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SURNAME NAMES FULL 

TIME / 

PART 

TIME 

PARTY  COMMITTEES PERCENTAGE 

COUNCIL 

ATTENDANCE  

PERCENTAGE 

COUNCIL 

NON 

ATTENDANCE 

APOLOGIES  

Mokako Mvula Samuel Full 

time 

ANC Rules, MPAC 88.8% 11.2% 

Tsotetsi Petrus 

Butietjie 

Full 

time 

ANC  88.8% 11.2% 

Melina  Gomba Part 

time 

ANC  100% 0 

Mshudulu Assistance Part 

time 

ANC Rules 77.7% 22.3% 

Mollo  Daddy Simon Part 

Time 

DA Elections, MPAC 100 % 0 

Peters Frederich 

Wilhelm 

Part 

time 

DA MPAC       88.8% 11.2% 

Parson  Andrea Part 

time 

DA  66.6% 33.4% 

Baloyi Patricia 

Buyisile 

Part 

time 

DA Gender 77.7% 22.3% 

Maraka Teboho Ernest Part 

time 

DA Petitions 100 % 0 

Pooe  Ntsiri 

Shadrack 

Part 

time 

PAC Ethics, Rules, MPAC       88.8% 11.2% 

Nkosi Mluleki Nelson 

Ronald 

Part 

time 

ANC  22.2% 77.8% 

Ramothibe Thembekile Part ANC Petitions 66.6% 33.4% 
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SURNAME NAMES FULL 

TIME / 

PART 

TIME 

PARTY  COMMITTEES PERCENTAGE 

COUNCIL 

ATTENDANCE  

PERCENTAGE 

COUNCIL 

NON 

ATTENDANCE 

APOLOGIES  

Ellen time 

Roos Adv. 

Stephanus 

Johannes 

Part 

time 

DA Petitions 44.4% 55.6% 

Maphalla Simon Tabudi Part 

time 

ANC  88.8% 11.2% 

Ryder Richard Denis Part 

time 

DA  88.8% 11.2% 

Radebe Modiane 

Martha 

Part 

time 

DA Gender 100% 0 

Mooi Nomsa Part 

time 

ANC  88.8% 11.2% 

Maseko Pius Part 

time 

ANC Ethics, MPAC, 88.8% 11.2% 

Matsei Nozindaba 

Pauline 

Part 

time 

ANC MPAC 100 % 0 

Hlongwane Daniel Star Part 

time 

ANC MPAC, Petitions 100 % 0 

Ngubane Louw Part 

time 

ANC Gender, Rules 100 % 0 

Dlangalala Florence Part 

time 

ANC  77.7% 22.3% 

Morolong Abel Part ANC Ethics 100 % 0 
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SURNAME NAMES FULL 

TIME / 

PART 

TIME 

PARTY  COMMITTEES PERCENTAGE 

COUNCIL 

ATTENDANCE  

PERCENTAGE 

COUNCIL 

NON 

ATTENDANCE 

APOLOGIES  

time 

Rani Siza Part 

time 

ANC  100% 0 

Malisa Dimakatso Part 

time 

ANC  100 % 0 

Rapapadi Lahliwe Part 

time 

ANC  66.6% 33.4% 

Soxuza Sibongile Part 

time 

ANC Petitions 88.8% 11.2% 

Lehlake  Joseph Part 

time 

ANC Petitions 100 % 0 

Maseko Thandi Part 

time 

ANC Gender, Mpac, 66.6% 33.4% 

Tibane Griffiths Part 

time 

ANC  100 % 0 

Raikane Makhomo Full 

Time 

ANC  88.8% 11.2% 

Mnguni Fetty FULL 

TIME 

ANC  100 % 0 

Hoffman Danie Part 

time 

DA  100 % 0 

Karsten Jaco Part 

time 

DA Ethics, Rules  100 % 0 
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SURNAME NAMES FULL 

TIME / 

PART 

TIME 

PARTY  COMMITTEES PERCENTAGE 

COUNCIL 

ATTENDANCE  

PERCENTAGE 

COUNCIL 

NON 

ATTENDANCE 

APOLOGIES  

Nkosi Simon Part 

time 

DA  77.4% 22.3% 

Louw Rohan Part 

time 

DA  88.8% 11.2% 

Coetzee Yvonne Part 

time 

DA  88.8% 11.2% 

Moleko Attie Part 

time 

DA  100 % 0 

Radebe Abel Part 

time 

PAC Elections, Gender, 

Petitions 

88.8% 11.2% 

 

 

The attendance of Council meetings at the Sedibeng District Municipality is significantly high.  The A ppendix above 

shows an average of over 80%  
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APPENDIX B – COMMITTEES AND COMMITTEE PURPOSES  

 
COMMITTEE PURPOSE 

Gender Committee Oversight  

Elections Committee Oversight  

Rules Committee Oversight  

Ethics Committee Oversight  

Petitions Committee Oversight  

Audit Committee Oversight 

MPAC Oversight 

Remuneration Committee Oversight 

Mayoral Committee Oversight 

Council Oversight 

8 Section 80 Portfolio Committees Oversight 
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APPENDIX C –THIRD TIER ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE   
 
 

DIRECTORATE MANAGER/ASSISTANT MANAGER  

Office of the Executive Mayor : 
AM Mapetla 

1. TN Ndaba 
2. T. Sebusi 
 

Office of the Speaker:  
TJ Tsoho 

1. TT Maleka 
2. HM Mpontshane 
3. RTP Morobe 

Office of the Chief Whip:  
SJ Dhlamini 

 

Municipal Systems:  
FM Mathe (Acting) 

1. M Masangane  
2. T Mokoari 
3. MB Masibihlele 

Financial Management:  
CE Steyn 

1. A Lubbe 
2. VT Mokoari 
3. KZ Kowlessar 

Supply Chain Management:  
TM Tsie 

1. S Njongi 

Coorporate Servi ces:  
GR Deyzel 

 

Human Resources:  
MW Ramotsedisi 

1. TS Maloka 
2. Pl Modimoeng 
3. LM Nkele 

Legal  & Support : 
NP Shembe 

1. N Tshabalala 
2. MT Ngake 
3. S Zungu 

Facilities:  
LB Khumalo 

1. BW Johnson 
2. AL Hlongwane (on suspension) 
3. Maranda (Acting Manager) 

Utilities:  
WT Molato 

1. TJ Tsotetsi 
2. C Mokoena 

IT: 
Y Chamda 

1. MC Visagie 
2. HAJ Mans 
3. AM O’Kelly 

TIE-Environment:  
 

1. MS Dube 
2. I Ngobese 
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DIRECTORATE MANAGER/ASSISTANT MANAGER  

3. AJ Van Zyl 
4. PM Mahlatsi 
5. J Senokoane-Malay 
6. MF Thekiso 

TIE- Transport & Infra P:  
M Manqa  

1. MM Khalema 
2. NS Mofokeng 

TIE – Licensing:  
 

1. HJH Korb  
2. T Lenake 
3. E Van Zyl 
4. A Msibi 

Community Services: Health  
DL Magagula 

 

Community Services: SRACH  
N Felix 

1. B Mosebi 
2. S Khumalo 

Community Services: Safety  
M Leacwe (Acting): 

 

Community Services: HIV/AIDS  
MJ Makhutle 

1. P Mohapeloa 

Community Services: Disaster 
Management 
RS Tlhapolosa 

1. MMD Taljaard 
2. PJ Niewenhuize 

SPED: LED & TOURISM  
KS Mbongo 

1. MD Kantso 
2. R Pelser 
3. MR Masangane 
4. M Dladla 
5. M Mokgatlhe 
6. SP van Wyk 

SPED: DEVELOPMENT 
PLANNING, HOUSING & NDP 
R Thema (Acting) 

1. ET Moleko  
2. CH Majola 
3. T Mutlaneng 

SPED: Communication:  
MD Manoeli (Acting): 

1. MCE Mofokeng 
2. F Safi 
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APPENDIX D – FUNCTIONS OF MUNICIPALITY / ENTITY  

 
 

Municipal functions 

Function 
Applicable 

to Municipal 
(Yes/No)* 

Function 
Applicable 
to Entity 

(Yes/ No) 

Constitution of Schedule 4, Part B functions:    

Air pollution Y  

Building regulations N  

Child care facilities N  

Electricity and gas reticulation N  

Fire-fighting services  N  

Local Tourism Y  

Municipal airports Y  

Municipal Planning N  

Municipal Health Services Y  

Municipal Public transport Y  

Municipal public works only in respect of the needs of 
municipalities in the discharge of their responsibilities to 
administer functions specifically assigned to them under this 
Constitution or any other law 

 

N 

 

Pontoons, ferries, jetties, piers and harbours, excluding the 
regulation of international and national shipping and related 
thereto 

 

N 

 

Storm-water management systems in built-up areas  N  

Trading regulations N  

Water and sanitation services limited to potable water supply 
systems and domestic waste-water and sewage disposal 
systems  

N  

Beaches and amusement facilities N  

Billboards and the display of advertisements in public places N  
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Municipal functions 

Function 
Applicable 

to Municipal 
(Yes/No)* 

Function 
Applicable 
to Entity 

(Yes/ No) 

Constitution of Schedule 4, Part B functions:    

Cemeteries, funeral parlours and crematories N  

Cleansing N  

Control of public nuisances N  

Control of undertakings that sell liquor to the public N  

Facilities for the accommodation, care and burial of animals N  

Fencing and fences N  

Licensing of dogs N  

Licensing and control of undertakings that sell food to the 
public 

N  

Local amenities N  

Local sport facilities N  

Markets Y  

Municipal abattoirs Y  

Municipal parks and recreation  N  

Municipal roads N  

Noise pollution  N  

pounds N  

Public places N  

Refuse removal, refuse dumps and solid waste disposal N  

street trading N  

Street lighting N  

Traffic and parking N  

*If municipality: indicate (yes or No); *If entity:  Provide name of entity                      TD  
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APPENDIX E – WARD REPORTING 
 
[Not applicable TO SDM] 
 
 

APPENDIX F – WARD INFORMATION 
 
[Not applicable TO SDM] 
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APPENDIX G – RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT 
COMMITTEE YEAR 0 
 
Municipal Audit Committee Recommendations 
 
Date of 
Committee 

Committee recommendations during Year 0 Recommendations 
adopted (enter Yes) If 
not adopted (provide 
explanation) 

 27 August 
2013 
  

  
1. Financial Overview And Comparative 

Analysis Report On The Draft Annual 
Financial Statements For Year Ending 
30 June 2013 

 
Recommendations:  
 
That this report together with the Unaudited Annual 
Financial Statements for the year ending 30 June 
2012, be noted for information in line with section 122 
of the MFMA, Act No.56 of 2003. 
 

2. Internal Audit Reports for the period July 
2012 –June 2013 

 
Recommendations:  
 
THAT the Internal Audit Status Report and the 
Internal Audit Reports for the period July 2012 to 
June 2013 be hereby approved.  
 

3. Annual Internal Audit Plan 2013/14 And 
The Three Year Rolling Audit Plan 2013-
2016 

 
Recommendations:  
 
THAT the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2013/14 and 
the 2013-2016 Three Year Rolling audit plan financial 
year, be hereby reviewed and approved. 
 

4. 3rd Quarter Performance Report 2012/13 
 
Recommendations:  
 
THAT the third Quarter Organizational Performance 
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Municipal Audit Committee Recommendations 
 
Date of 
Committee 

Committee recommendations during Year 0 Recommendations 
adopted (enter Yes) If 
not adopted (provide 
explanation) 

report for the 2012/13 Financial Year hereby be 
noted. 
 

5. 4th  Quarter Performance Report 2012/13 
 
Recommendations:  
 
Deferred to the next meeting 
 

6. Schedule Of Audit Committee Meetings 
For The 2013/2014 Financial Year 

 
Recommendations:  
 
Deferred to the next meeting 
 

7. Annual Performance Report: 2012/2013  
 
Recommendations:  
 
THAT the Annual Performance Report for the 
2012/13 Financial Year be hereby considered and 
noted as is. 
 

11 September 
2013 

1. Schedule Of Audit Committee Meetings 
For The 2013/2014 Financial Year 

 
Recommendations:  
 
That the Schedule of Audit Committee Meetings for 
the 2013/14 financial year be approved. 
 

25 November 
2013 
(Special 
Meeting ) 
 
 
 
 
 

1.  Financial overview and comparative 
analysis report on the audited Annual 
financial statements for the year ended 
30 June 2013 

 
Recommendations:  
THAT this report together with the Audited Annual 
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 
2013 be noted. 
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Municipal Audit Committee Recommendations 
 
Date of 
Committee 

Committee recommendations during Year 0 Recommendations 
adopted (enter Yes) If 
not adopted (provide 
explanation) 

 
 

 
2. Auditor General final report and 

management letter 2012/13 
 
Recommendations:  
 

- THAT the complete Auditor-General's report 
on the financial statements and performance 
information of Sedibeng District Municipality 
for the 2012/2013 financial year, attached as 
Annexures “A” and “B” to the report, be 
noted. 

 
- THAT the Municipal Manager or his nominee 

be hereby delegated to invite the Auditor-
General to the Ordinary Council Meeting 
scheduled for January 2014 at which this 
report will be tabled in terms of the Section 
130 of the MFMA, as referred to in the report. 

 

 05 March 2014 
 

1.  Internal Audit Reports  
 

1.1 Audit of Predetermined Objectives (Q1 
and Q2) 

Recommendations:  
 

i. THAT  the report on the audit of performance 
against predetermined objective for the first 
(1st) and second (2nd) quarter of the 2013/14 
financial year be noted. 

ii. THAT Management address all the 
deficiencies and findings of the Internal 
Auditors such that there are no repeat 

iii. THAT the Municipal Manager ensures that 
stringent internal controls are in place in order 
to avoid repeat findings, 

iv.  THAT all incomplete reports be resubmitted 
at the next meeting of the audit committee 
after being completed and considered by 
management 
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Municipal Audit Committee Recommendations 
 
Date of 
Committee 

Committee recommendations during Year 0 Recommendations 
adopted (enter Yes) If 
not adopted (provide 
explanation) 

 

1.2 Follow-Up Review 
 
Recommendations:  

i. THAT all incomplete reports be completed 
and resubmitted at the next meeting of 
the audit committee for consideration. 

ii. THAT the Municipal Manager ensures that 
the findings on licensing department are 
addressed urgently as they impact on the 
revenue for the council. 

 
2.  Organisational Performance Reports  

 
2.1 Performance Management System 

Frame-Work And Policy  
 
Recommendations:  
 

i. THAT the Performance Management System 
Framework be revised in order to factor in 
various aspects such as the new regulations 
on Performance and minimum competency 
requirements. 

 
ii. THAT members of the Audit Committee 

submit inputs on the framework referred to in 
(1) above to the Acting Director: Municipal 
Systems to incorporate in the revised 
framework. 

 
iii. THAT the Chief Operations Officer arranges 

a workshop for the members of the Audit 
Committee together with MANCO  to 
consider amongst others management of 
oversight over performance by the 
committee. 

 
2.2 Annual Report 2012/13 

 
Recommendations:  
 

 
YES 
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Municipal Audit Committee Recommendations 
 
Date of 
Committee 

Committee recommendations during Year 0 Recommendations 
adopted (enter Yes) If 
not adopted (provide 
explanation) 

i. THAT the Annual Report for the 2012/13 
financial year be noted  

ii. THAT it be noted that the annual report 
referred to in (1) above has been considered 
by the council and referred to the Municipal 
Public Account Committee for oversight. 

 
2.3 Mid- Year Report 2013/14   
 
Recommendations:  
 

i. THAT it be noted that the Mid Year 
Performance report has been considered by 
Council at its meeting held on the 30 January 
2014.  

 
ii. THAT all performance reports be submitted 

first to the Audit Committee before being 
tabled before the Council.  

 

  

3.  Risk Management Reports  
 

3.1 Progress Report: Strategic Support Plan  
 
Recommendations:  
 
THAT the progress report on the Strategic Support 
Plan be deferred for consideration at the next 
meeting of the audit committee. 
 
3.2 Risk Committee Charter 
 
Recommendations:  
 
THAT the report on the Risk Management 
Committee Charter be deferred for consideration 
 at the next meeting of the Audit Committee. 
 

 18 June 2014 

1. Enterprise Risk Management Policy And 
Framework 
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Municipal Audit Committee Recommendations 
 
Date of 
Committee 

Committee recommendations during Year 0 Recommendations 
adopted (enter Yes) If 
not adopted (provide 
explanation) 

Recommendations:  
 
THAT the Enterprise Risk Management Policy & 
Framework attached  to the report as Annexures 
“A” and “B” respectively be hereby approved. 
 

2. Fraud Prevention Plan  
 
Recommendations:  
 
THAT the Fraud Prevention Plan, Fraud Policy and 
Response Plan and  Matrix of tasks and 
responsibilities be hereby approved. 
 

3. Annual Review Of The Audit Committee 
Charter  

 
Recommendations:  
 
THAT the reviewed Audit Committee Charter be 
hereby approved. 
 

4. Performance Management System 
Framework  

 
Recommendations:  
 
THAT the Performance Management System 
Framework attached to the report as Annexure “A”, 
be hereby approved. 
 
 

  

 
All Audit Committee recommendations were adopted in  quorate Audit Committee meetings. 
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APPENDIX H – LONG TERM CONTRACTS AND PUBLIC PRIVATE 
PARTNERSHIPS 
 

Name of 

Partners 

Name and 

Description of 

Project 

Initiation 

Date 

contract 

Expiry Date Project Manager Contract value 

(R) 

CORPORATE SERVICES 
LEGAL AND SUPPORT SERVICES 

Britfire Service and 

maintenance of 

Fire detection 

system 

Initial 

period -

1 year 

Contract 

extended for 

3 years from  

July 2012 -  

June 2015 

Mr. Nelson 

Tshabalala 

R43 399.64 pa. 

R10 849.91 per 

quarter. 

Quidity Electronic 

Management of 

document and 

work-flow 

system. 

Initial 

period - 

3 years 

1 Feb 2014 -  

31 January 

2015 

 

Mr. Nelson 

Tshabalala 

R90 138 pa. 

R7511.46 

monthly license 

fee. 

Konica Minolta  Maintenance of 

photocopiers 

5 years 26 June 2009 

-  26 June 

2014 

Mr. Nelson 

Tshabalala 

4c per copy 

 

Konica Minolta Lease of photo 

copying machines 

3 years 29 April 2014 

to 28 April 

2017 

Mr. Nelson 

Tshabalala 

Contract value: 
R90 000 pa 
Bizhub 951 is 
being charged at 
4 cents per copy 
(black and white) 
whilst the Bizhub 
C654e is being 
charged at 49 
cents per copy 
per colour and 
6.3 cents per 
black and white 
copy. 

Connect Net 

(PTY) LTD. 

Card machines at 

Licensing depts. 

and Vereeniging 

airport. 

3 years Started Sept. 

2011 - Sept. 

2014 (3 

years). 

Ms. Colette 

Esterhuizen 

R169 pm per 

machine x 13. 

FACILITIES MANAGEMENT 

Vereeniging 

Trust on behalf 

of  

Alhilal 

investment 

Lease of House & 

Home offices. 

3 years Contract 

extended on 

a month to 

month basis 

pending the 

finalization 

 R104 218 pm 
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of tender 

process. 

Vereeniging 

Trust 

Lease of Ventura 

offices 

Initial 

period -

3 yrs 

Same as 

above  

 R44 588 pm 

MMM 

Investment 

Lease of Cheese 

Borough Building 

1 yr Extended 

from 31 

March 2012 

till 01 April 

2013 

 R24 510 pm 

MMM 

Investment 

Lease of Stanley 

Building 

1 yr Extended 

from 31 

March 2012 

till 01 April 

2013 

 R28 500 pm 

Mafoko 

Security Patrols 

Guarding of all 

Council 

properties 

3 years 1 July 2014 -

30 June 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 Contracted 

amount R30 399 

137.28 for 3 

years VAT excl 

 

-R844 420.48 

pm. Amounts 

paid ex VAT: 

July-R844 

420.46; 

 

Aug-R 884 420. 

46; 

 

Sept- R953 

775.62 

Insig Motors 

PTY LTD 

Purchase of fuel 

and oil. 

3 yrs 15 Jan 2014 

to 14 January 

2016. 

 Average of R 126 

2016 pm 

depending on 

usage. 

Balance in vote –

R987 718.49 

Rentokil Initial 

(Pty) Ltd 

Hygienic services 

at various offices. 

Initial 

period -

3yrs 

Started 01 

February 

2009 to 01 

March 2012. 

Month to 

month 

contract is in 

place 

 R56 117.53 pm  

The contract is 

“flexible” in 

relation to sites 

ie if there is a 

new site it is 

added and if a 

site is 

discontinued it is 
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taken off. Eg. the 

Mphatlatsane 

theatre which  is 

no longer being 

serviced. 

Vaal Triangle 

Fire Services 

Supply and repair 

of firefighting 

equipment. 

3yrs 18 /9/2013 

to 17/9/2016 

 Rates per item 

charged when 

serviced, as per 

contract. No 

service rendered 

and no payments 

for July and 

August 

Otis Maintenance 

service of lifts 

5 yrs 2007 to 

2012.  

A month to 

month 

contract is in 

place. 

 R1 900 pm 

ABSA Supply and 

delivery of motor 

vehicles, light and 

heavy 

commercial 

vehicles, buses 

and motor cycles 

to the state 

(lease contract) 

3 yrs September 

2012 to 

September 

2015 

 R902 597.40 pa 

 

R25 072.15 pm 

linked to prime. 

Lesedi 

Municipality 

Lease of : 

-Heidelberg Taxi 

Rank. 

-Shalimar Ridge 

Taxi Rank. 

-Heidelberg 

Airport. 

 

Initial 

period -

3yrs 

Started July 

2009 to June 

2012. 

 

 R1 000 pm 

 

R1 000 pm 

 

 

R2 510 pm 

Emfuleni Local 

Municipality 

Lease 

agreements for: 

-Bophelong Taxi 

Rank 

 

3yrs 
Started July 

2009 to June 

2012 

  

R1 000 pm 

 

 

 

   
 

  

UTILITIES 

HJD Electricals Maintenance of 

market roller 

3 years Started 2007 

& extended 

 About R2 736 pm 

depending call 
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doors and sliding 

gates. 

on a month 

to month 

basis 

pending the 

outsourcing 

of the FPM. 

outs per month. 

Does not exceed 

R 50 000 pa 

Schindler lifts Maintenance of 

lifts at the Fresh 

Produce Market. 

3 yrs Currently 

month to 

month. 

 R4 634.53 pm. 

Fresh Mark 

Systems (Sole 

supplier) 

Software 

maintenance. 

1 yrs Currently 

month to 

month 

 R4 5908.70 pm. 

Instant Services 

and Repairs 

Maintenance of 

cold storages and 

ripening room. 

 Currently 

month to 

month 

 +- R 9 350 pm 

depending on 

the number of 

call-outs. 

Prokon Sole 

supplier) 

Quality 

inspection on 

fresh produce on 

behalf of the 

Dept. of 

Agriculture. 

3 yrs Currently 

month to 

month 

 R 5 437.42 pm 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

Solstice 

Network CC 

Contract 79/12: 

Provision of 

accredited 

National Treasury 

Minimum 

Competency 

Regulations 

Training 

1 yr 29 June 2013 

to 30 June 

2014. 

 Price per Unit 

Standard per 

participant: 

Training – R4 750 

RPL Assessment - 

R3 000. 

 

 

IT DEPARTMENT 

Netplus 

8/2/2/14-2012 

Network cabling 

and repairs. 

3 yrs April 2012– 

March 2015 

 The value 

depends on 

demand. 

Business 

Connexion 828 

J1, 828 I11 

Server 

maintenance & 

service. 

3 yrs 1 Jan 2011 to 

31 Dec 2014 

 R 113 073.60 pa 

Diamond 

Corner 

8/2/2/112 

Computer 

hardware. 

3 yrs 01May 2011 

ends 30 April 

2014. 

 On demand not 

exceeding the 

budget which is 

R2m 

Diamond 

Corner  

8/2/2/57-2011 

Supply of mobile 

data. 

2 yrs 26 June 2012 

ends on 25 

June 2014. 

 R 2 376 000 pa 

Securelink Installation of IT 3 yrs Extended  Total contract 
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systems network. from 14 April 

2014 to 13 

March 2015 

value R 

49,500,000. 

Amysa 

Stationers CC  

8/2/2/49-2011 

Supply and 

delivery of 

original printer 

cartridges 

3 yrs 03 April 2014 

till 02 April 

2015 

 Budget of       R 

785,348, payable 

as and when 

service is 

required. 

Sho Sho 

Industrial 

Supplier CC 

8/2/2/49-2011 

Supply and 

delivery of 

original printer 

cartridges 

3 yrs 03 April 2013 

till 02 April 

2014 

(renewal) 

 Budget of R 785 

348 payable as 

and when service 

is required. 

Palmerton 

Cartridges CC   

8/2/2/49-2011 

Supply and 

delivery of 

original printer 

cartridges 

3 yrs 03 April 2013 

till 02 April 

2014 

(renewal) 

 Budget of R 785 

348 payable as 

and when service 

is required. 

Sage Computer 

Technology 

(Pty) Ltd  

8/2/2/49-2011 

Supply and 

delivery of 

original printer 

cartridges 

3 yrs 03 April 2013 

till 02 April 

2014 

(renewal) 

 Budget of R 785 

348 payable as 

and when service 

is required. 

VPN 

Technologies 

IT Networking 

Engineering 

Support and 

Internet services 

3 yrs 25 June 2013 

to 24 June 

2016. 

 The value 

depends on 

demand 

Batloung 

Technologies 

Repair and 

maintain Council 

printers 

3 yrs 1 Sept. 2013 

to 31 August 

2016 

 R787 988.00 for 

the entire 

contract. 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

Standard bank Commercial 

banking Services. 

3 yrs 01 July 2013 

to 30 June 

2015. 

Mr. Charles 

Steyn 

Use account as 

and when need 

arises. 

Lateral unison 

insurance 

Short term 

insurance. 

3 years New con-

tract started 

1 July 2012 

to terminate 

on 30 June 

2015. 

Mr. Andre 

Lubbe 

R2 437 335 .97 

pa  

 

 

Business 

Connexion 

Maintenance of 

the Venus System 

Annual 28 January 

2014 to 29 

January 

2015. 

Mr. Charles 

Steyn 

R307 850 paid as 

annual license 

fee   

Payday Supply Software Annual Annual 

license fee 

renewable 

every July.  

Mr. Charles 

Steyn 

R156 967.74 pa 
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Price Water 

Cooper House 

Baud Asset 

Management 

System 

Annual Annual 

license fee. 

Mr. Charles 

Steyn 

Based on 

quotation if the 

system requires 

maintenance 

CQS 

Technology 

Case View for 

software to 

prepare financial 

statements. 

Annual Annually 

payable in 

February of 

each year. 

Mr. Charles 

Steyn 

R 87 415.20 pa 

Sure Zorgvliet 

Travel 

Travel 

Management 

Services 

2 yrs 1 December 

2013 to 30 

November 

2015. 

 Ad-hoc 

Nexus Travel Travel 

Management 

Services 

2 yrs 1 December 

2013 to 30 

November 

2015. 

 Ad -hoc 

MaxProf VAT review and 

recovery 

3 yrs May 2014 – 

May 2017 

 15% of all VAT 

recovered. 

Mmapaballo Supply of 

newspapers 

3 yrs Contract 

extended on 

a month to 

month basis 

pending the 

finalization 

of tender 

process. 

 The amount 

varies according 

to available 

funds 

Intenda Annual license 

fee for the 

Intenda system of 

the supply chain 

management 

system. 

12 

months 

1 August 

2014 to 30 

31 July 2015 

 R 40 498.04  VAT 

included paid in 

August 2014 as 

annual 

COMMUNITY SERVICES 
SPORTS & RECREATION 

Tenant -New 

Covenant 

Church(Lessee) 

Leasing of the 

Vereeniging 

theatre to tenant. 

12 

Months 

March 2014 

to March 

2015 

 R15 000,00 pm 

Emfuleni Local 

Municipality 

Lease agreements 
for: 
- Sharpeville 

Exhibition 
Center 

- Sharpeville 
Hall 

- Technorama 
Mphahlalatsane 
Theater. 

3 years Started July 

2009 to June 

2012. Month 

to month 

contract is in 

place. 

Mr. Pieter 

Nieuwenhuizen 

 

R1 000 pm 

R1 000 pm 

 

R1 000 pm 

R1 000 pm 
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Lesedi 

Municipality 

Lease of : 

-Heidelberg 

Museum 

3 years Started July 

2009 to June 

2012. 

Month to 

month 

contract is in 

place. 

 

Mr. Pieter 

Nieuwenhuizen 

R1 000 pm 

 

 

COMMUNITY SAFETY 

Securelink Maintenance of 

the CCTV 

network. 

3 years 15 February 

2014 – 14 

February 

2017 

 Total value for 

period of 3 yrs = 

R5 880 000;   

R155 000,00 pm 

DISASTER MANAGEMENT 

Sysman Public 

Safety  Systems 

(Pty) Ltd 

Licensing of 

Software & 

Support. 

3 years 01 July 2014 

till 30 June 

2017 

 R221 863.11 pa. 

Sysman Public 

Safety  Systems 

(Pty) Ltd 

Maintenance of 

Hardware 

3 years 01 July 2014 

till 30 June 

2017 

 R 14 521.56 pa. 

Gauteng 

Ambulance 

Services 

MOA for 

rendering of Call 

taking & 

Dispatching of 

Ambulance Calls 

1 year 01 July 2014 

till 30 June 

2015 

 R 65 940.00 

income per 

month 

Midvaal Local 

Municipality 

Fire fighting 

Services. 

3 yrs 1/7/2013 - 

2016 

 As and when 

services are 

rendered and 

calculated in 

terms of 

promulgated 

tariffs and in the 

prescribed 

format. 

Emfuleni Local 

Municipality 

Fire fighting 

Services. 

3yrs 1 July 2013 – 

June 2016 

 As and when 

services are 

rendered and 

calculated in 

terms of 

promulgated 

tariffs and in the 

prescribed 

format. 

Airborne Africa Rental of hangar 

space for Gyro 

Plane, tractor and 

3 yrs 
1 July 2013 

to 30 June 

 R1 000.00 pm 
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other equipment 2016 

 

HEALTH AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT 

External 

Bursary Board 

Members 

Bursary 

committee 

3 yrs 2014 - 2016  R500 per sitting 

allowance (Four 

meetings per 

annum) 

Bursary 

Contracts 

1 year Contract Annual Annual  R16 000 Per 

learner 

 
HIV & AIDS DIRECTORATE  

Bonang 

Bophelo 

Development 

Organisation 

 

(ward-based 

coordinators) 

Management of 

140 Emfuleni 

HIV&AIDS 

Ward-based 

coordinators’ 

daily door to 

door 

educational 

campaigns,  

activities and 

ward-based 

programmes, 

including the 

payment of 

monthly stipend 

to coordinators   

 

 

12 

Months  

July 2014-

June 2015 

 

 

 

R 3, 436,800 

goes to 

payment of 

stipend of 

ward-based 

coordinators 

     AND  

R 343 680 for 

admin cost 

 

(Funds are 

transferred 

quarterly to 

the service 

provider, 

upon receipt 

of narrative 

report and 

bank 

statement) 

Community 

Regeneration 

and 

Development 

Centre 

 

(ward-based 

coordinators) 

Management of 

76 Midvaal and 

Lesedi 

HIV&AIDS 

Ward-based 

coordinators’ 

daily door to 

door 

educational 

campaigns,  

activities and 

ward-based 

programmes, 

including the 

payment of 

12 

Months July 2014-

June 2015 

 

 R 1, 888,800 

goes towards 

the payment 

of ward-

based 

coordinators 

     AND 

188 880 for 

admin costs 

 

(Funds are 

transferred 

quarterly to 

the service 

provider, 
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monthly stipend 

to coordinators   

upon receipt 

of narrative 

report and 

bank 

statement). 

 
SPED 

PLANNING & SPECIAL PROJECTS  

MDQ Compilation of 

precinct plan for 

the Sebokeng 

Cultural Precinct. 

16 

Months  

1/3/2013 

to 

30/6/201

4. 

Contract 

extended 

to 14 

Decembe

r 2014 as 

a result of 

extension 

of scope. 

Addendu

m 

prepared. 

 R2 460 

164.86 for 

the entire 

contract 

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & TOURISM 

Vaal 

University of 

Technology 

Mandate to 

promote local 

economic 

development 

12 When all 

the 

parties 

have 

signed 

the 

contract. 

 R1 200 000 

pa 

Gauteng 

Tourism 

Authority 

Financial 

assistance for the 

cost of printing 

and design of 

passport booklets 

for the tourism 

passport project 

4 

Months  

16 April 

2014 to 

31 July 

2014 

Extended 

to 31 

Decembe

r 2014 

 R40 000.00 

once off 

 

PLANNING AND HOUSING PROJECTS  

Zidlaphi 

Kgomo & 

Refurbishment of 

Eldorado Informal 

Trade Centre 

1 yr  10 

December 

2013 – 9 

December 

 R 4 700 000 

VAT included 

for the entire 

project. 
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Associates  

 

2014 

Zidlaphi 

Kgomo & 

Associates 

Constructing of 

wing extension at 

Eldorado building 

4 

Months  

11 August 

2014 – 10 

December 

2014 

 R3 361 518 

TIE 
TRANSPORT INFRASTRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT  

Blue sands 

trading 106 

cc 

Upgrading of 

Jameson Park 

Sports Facilities 

6 

Months 

5 June 

2013 – 9 

December 

2013. 

 R1,474 

653.70 for 

entire 

project 

Blue Sands 

Trading 106 

cc 

Upgrading of 

Impumelelo 

Sports Facilities 

6 

Months  

 

18 June 

2013 – 15 

December 

2013 

R1 000 

pm 

 

 

 

 R1 826 

403.14 for 

entire 

project 

Tsekema 

Consulting 

Engineers 

Professional Civil 

Engineers 

appointed for the 

Design, 

Specification, 

Documentation 

and site 

Supervision for 

the Upgrading of 

various Sports 

Fields in the 

Lesedi Local 

municipality 

Until 

complet

ion of 

constru

ction 

contract 

November 

2013 till 

end of 

retention 

period 

 R1 324 

714.93 for 

entire 

project 

 
 

LINCENCING 

Lesedi 

Municipality 

Lease of : 

-Lesedi Licensing. 

-Lesedi Testing 

Station. 

 

 Initial 

period -

3yrs 

Month-to-

month. 

 R70 476 pm 

 

R1 000 pm 

Emfuleni 

Local 

Lease agreements 

for: 

3 yrs Month-to- 

month. 

  

R1 000 pm 
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Municipality -Vereeniging 

License and 

Testing 

-Vanderbjilpark 

License and 

Testing 

 

 

R1 000 

pmburglary 

recently.  

Security 

needs to be 

upgraded 

substantially 

on this site. 

Services not 

being 

rendered, 

waiting for 

insurance 

claim.  

Midvaal 

Municipality 

Lease of: 

-Meyerton 

Licensing and 

Testing. 

2 yrs 1 July 

2013 – 30 

June 2016 

 
R16 600 pm 

 

 
ENVIRONMENT   

Local 

Municipalities 

obo the SDM 

Agency 

Agreement for 

the rendering of 

Municipal Health 

Services 

3 

years  

1 July 

2014 – 30 

June 2015 

 Differs from 

municipality 

to 

municipality. 

Total 

approved 

budget for 

2014/15 is 

R16,764,249 

Zanokuhle 

Services 

Meyeton -Air 

Quality 

Monitoring 

station 

maintenance 

and repairs 

16 

Month

s 

1 

September 

2014 – 30 

December 

2015 

 R748 796.46 

MUNICIPAL MANAGER 

Grant 

Thornton 

(Pty) Ltd 

Performance of 

internal audit 

function for the 

municipality 

3 yrs 03 

October 

2011 till 

02 

September 

2014 

 R1 906 992 

for the entire 

contract 
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The Oliphant 

Institute of 

Learnership 

Youth 

Development 

Programme 

3 yrs 4 March 

2014 – 3 

March 

2017 

 R100 000 for 

the entire 

contract 
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APPENDIX I – MUNICIPAL ENTITY/ SERVICE PROVIDER PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE 
 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contract entered in to during  Year 0)  
Name of service 
provider (Entity 
or Municipal 
Department) 

Description of services 
rendered  by the services 
provider 

Start 
date of 
contract 

Expiry of 
contract 

Project 
Manager 

Contract value 
(R) 

Progress  

CORPORATE SERVICES  
LEGAL AND SUPPORT SERVICES  
Britfire Service and maintenance of 

Fire detection system 
Initial 
period -1 
year 

Contract 
extended for 
3 years from  
July 2012 -  
June 2015 

Mr. Nelson 
Tshabalala 

R43 399.64 pa. 
R10 849.91 per 
quarter. 

Implementation 
proceeding well. 
 
 

Quidity Electronic Management of 
document and work-flow 
system. 

Initial 
period - 
3 years 

1 Feb 2014 -  
31 January 
2015 
 

Mr. Nelson 
Tshabalala 

R90 138 pa. 
R7511.46 monthly 
license fee. 

Service provider provided 
a plan to address several 
issues relating to the 
system which include its 
user-friendliness and 
further training.   Training 
was conducted on 11 
August 2014.. 

Konica Minolta  Maintenance of photocopiers 5 years 26 June 2009 
-  26 June 
2014 

Mr. Nelson 
Tshabalala 

4c per copy 
 

An advertisement calling 
for proposals has gone 
out. Closing date 9 
October 2014. 

Konica Minolta Lease of photo copying 
machines 

3 years 29 April 2014 
to 28 April 
2017 

Mr. Nelson 
Tshabalala 

Contract value: 
R90 000 pa 
Bizhub 951 is 
being charged at 
4 cents per copy 

The 2 machines were 
delivered on time and 
have enhanced efficiency 
in the printing office. 



 

 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contract entered in to during  Year 0)  
Name of service 
provider (Entity 
or Municipal 
Department) 

Description of services 
rendered  by the services 
provider 

Start 
date of 
contract 

Expiry of 
contract 

Project 
Manager 

Contract value 
(R) 

Progress  

(black and white) 
whilst the Bizhub 
C654e is being 
charged at 49 
cents per copy per 
colour and 6.3 
cents per black 
and white copy. 

Connect Net 
(PTY) LTD. 

Card machines at Licensing 
depts. and Vereeniging airport. 

3 years Started Sept. 
2011 - Sept. 
2014 (3 
years). 

Ms. Colette 
Esterhuizen 

R169 pm per 
machine x 13. 

The service is now being 
rendered by the 
municipality`s bankers, 
Standard Bank. Letter 
sent to service provider 
confirming end of 
contract sent. 
Arrangement to be made 
for collection of their 
equipment.   

FACILITIES MANAGEMENT  
Vereeniging 
Trust on behalf 
of  
Alhilal 
investment 

Lease of House & Home 
offices. 

3 years Contract 
extended on 
a month to 
month basis 
pending the 
finalization of 
tender 
process. 

 R104 218 pm  
A decision has been 
taken to pursue the 
option of moving all 
employees from Donna 
Cheese, Stanley and 
Ventura buildings into the 
second floor of City 
Centre building.  
Discussions in this regard 



 

 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contract entered in to during  Year 0)  
Name of service 
provider (Entity 
or Municipal 
Department) 

Description of services 
rendered  by the services 
provider 

Start 
date of 
contract 

Expiry of 
contract 

Project 
Manager 

Contract value 
(R) 

Progress  

have taken place with the 
leasing agent, Messrs 
Vereeniging Trust. Price 
estimates are awaited 
from the landlord. 

Vereeniging 
Trust 

Lease of Ventura offices Initial 
period -3 
yrs 

Same as 
above  

 R44 588 pm  

MMM Investment Lease of Cheese Borough 
Building 

1 yr Extended 
from 31 
March 2012 
till 01 April 
2013 

 R24 510 pm  

MMM Investment Lease of Stanley Building 1 yr Extended 
from 31 
March 2012 
till 01 April 
2013 

 R28 500 pm  

Mafoko Security 
Patrols 

Guarding of all Council 
properties 

3 years 1 July 2014 -
30 June 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Contracted 
amount R30 399 
137.28 for 3 years 
VAT excl 
 
-R844 420.48 pm. 
Amounts paid ex 
VAT: 
July-R844 420.46; 
 
Aug-R 884 420. 

The contract allows for 
R100 000 per month iro 
specialized services 
(included in the monthly 
payment of R844 420). 
For August and 
September this amount 
was exceeded by about 
R40 000. The payment 
for September higher as 
a result of the annual 



 

 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contract entered in to during  Year 0)  
Name of service 
provider (Entity 
or Municipal 
Department) 

Description of services 
rendered  by the services 
provider 

Start 
date of 
contract 

Expiry of 
contract 

Project 
Manager 

Contract value 
(R) 

Progress  

 
 
  

46; 
 
Sept- R953 
775.62 

Sectoral Determination 
increasing the workers` 
wages which was 
addressed in the 
contract. 

Insig Motors PTY 
LTD 

Purchase of fuel and oil. 3 yrs 15 Jan 2014 
to 14 January 
2016. 

 Average of R 126 
2016 pm 
depending on 
usage. 
Balance in vote –
R987 718.49 

Contract implementation 
proceeding well. 

Rentokil Initial 
(Pty) Ltd 

Hygienic services at various 
offices. 

Initial 
period -
3yrs 

Started 01 
February 
2009 to 01 
March 2012. 
Month to 
month 
contract is in 
place 

 R56 117.53 pm  
The contract is 
“flexible” in 
relation to sites ie 
if there is a new 
site it is added 
and if a site is 
discontinued it is 
taken off. Eg. the 
Mphatlatsane 
theatre which  is 
no longer being 
serviced. 

The technical evaluation 
has taken place and 
report submitted to SCM. 
Date of bid evaluation 
committee meeting being 
awaited. 

Vaal Triangle 
Fire Services 

Supply and repair of 
firefighting equipment. 

3yrs 18 /9/2013 to 
17/9/2016 

 Rates per item 
charged when 
serviced, as per 
contract. No 
service rendered 

Contract proceeding well. 



 

 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contract entered in to during  Year 0)  
Name of service 
provider (Entity 
or Municipal 
Department) 

Description of services 
rendered  by the services 
provider 

Start 
date of 
contract 

Expiry of 
contract 

Project 
Manager 

Contract value 
(R) 

Progress  

and no payments 
for July and 
August 

Otis Maintenance service of lifts 5 yrs 2007 to 2012.  
A month to 
month 
contract is in 
place. 

 R1 900 pm Service continues in 
respect of the one lift that 
still works.  Schindler Lifts 
has been approached to 
return as service provider 
for the maintenance of 
the lifts. A date for a 
meeting to discuss the 
matter is set for 10/10/14. 

ABSA Supply and delivery of motor 
vehicles, light and heavy 
commercial vehicles, buses 
and motor cycles to the state 
(lease contract) 

3 yrs September 
2012 to 
September 
2015 

 R902 597.40 pa 
 
R25 072.15 pm 
linked to prime. 

Implementation 
proceeding well in line 
with the terms and 
conditions of the contract. 
3 yrs lease agreement for 
the Executive Mayor’s 
car. 

Lesedi 
Municipality 

Lease of : 
-Heidelberg Taxi Rank. 
-Shalimar Ridge Taxi Rank. 
-Heidelberg Airport. 
 

Initial 
period -
3yrs 

Started July 
2009 to June 
2012. 
 

 R1 000 pm 
 
R1 000 pm 
 
 
R2 510 pm 

Addenda in place 
extending the leases on a 
month to month basis. 
underway.   

Emfuleni Local 
Municipality 

Lease agreements for: 
-Bophelong Taxi Rank 
 

3yrs Started July 
2009 to June 
2012 

  
R1 000 pm 
 
 

Month to month 
arrangement in place. 



 

 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contract entered in to during  Year 0)  
Name of service 
provider (Entity 
or Municipal 
Department) 

Description of services 
rendered  by the services 
provider 

Start 
date of 
contract 

Expiry of 
contract 

Project 
Manager 

Contract value 
(R) 

Progress  

 
UTILITIES  
HJD Electricals Maintenance of market roller 

doors and sliding gates. 
3 years Started 2007 

& extended 
on a month to 
month basis 
pending the 
outsourcing 
of the FPM. 

 About R2 736 pm 
depending call 
outs per month. 
Does not exceed 
R 50 000 pa 

At the BSC meeting held 
on on 30/9.14, it was 
proposed that instead of 
going for a 3 year 
contract, the contract be 
extended for 1 year, the 
reason being the length 
of time towards the 
proposed metro in 2016. 
This will be taken up. 

Schindler lifts Maintenance of lifts at the 
Fresh Produce Market. 

3 yrs Currently 
month to 
month. 

 R4 634.53 pm. The contract with 
Schindler to be extended. 
They are the sole service 
provider for the 
maintenance of Schindler 
lifts. 

Fresh Mark 
Systems (Sole 
supplier) 

Software maintenance. 1 yrs Currently 
month to 
month 

 R4 5908.70 pm. Specifications have been 
developed in preparation 
for the calling of tenders. 
Addendum extending the 
contract on a month-to 
month basis being 
finalized. 

Instant Services 
and Repairs 

Maintenance of cold storages 
and ripening room. 

 Currently 
month to 
month 

 +- R 9 350 pm 
depending on the 
number of call-
outs. 

At the BSC meeting held 
on on 30/9.14, it was 
proposed that instead of 
going for a 3 year 



 

 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contract entered in to during  Year 0)  
Name of service 
provider (Entity 
or Municipal 
Department) 

Description of services 
rendered  by the services 
provider 

Start 
date of 
contract 

Expiry of 
contract 

Project 
Manager 

Contract value 
(R) 

Progress  

contract, the contract be 
extended for 1 year, the 
reason being the length 
of time towards the 
proposed metro in 2016. 
This will be taken up. 

Prokon Sole 
supplier) 

Quality inspection on fresh 
produce on behalf of the Dept. 
of Agriculture. 

3 yrs Currently 
month to 
month 

 R 5 437.42 pm The service provider is 
contracted by the Dept. of 
Agriculture to conduct 
quality inspections on 
fresh produce for all 
markets. Each individual 
market has to contract 
with Prokon for services it 
renders. 

HUMAN RESOURCES  
Solstice Network 
CC 

Contract 79/12: Provision of 
accredited National Treasury 
Minimum Competency 
Regulations Training 

1 yr 29 June 2013 
to 30 June 
2014. 

 Price per Unit 
Standard per 
participant: 
Training – R4 750 
RPL Assessment 
- R3 000. 
 
 

The finalization of the 
training has been 
extended to September 
2015 by the National 
Treasury. No extra 
financial implications for 
this contract. 

IT DEPARTMENT  
Netplus 8/2/2/14-
2012 

Network cabling and repairs. 3 yrs April 2012– 
March 2015 

 The value 
depends on 
demand. 

Cabling repairs and 
installing are completed 
on time and on budget 
and good service is 



 

 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contract entered in to during  Year 0)  
Name of service 
provider (Entity 
or Municipal 
Department) 

Description of services 
rendered  by the services 
provider 

Start 
date of 
contract 

Expiry of 
contract 

Project 
Manager 

Contract value 
(R) 

Progress  

provided by the vendor. 
The service is not regular 
and is only used as and 
when there is a need. 

Business 
Connexion 828 
J1, 828 I11 

Server maintenance & service. 3 yrs 1 Jan 2011 to 
31 Dec 2014 

 R 113 073.60 pa The use of this contract is 
limited to hardware 
breakdown and will only 
be used when such an 
event occurs. 

Diamond Corner 
8/2/2/112 

Computer hardware. 3 yrs 01May 2011 
ends 30 April 
2014. 

 On demand not 
exceeding the 
budget which is 
R2m 

A tender was advertised 
and closed on 22 May 
2014.  Currently, the 
technical evaluation is 
taking place. An 
addendum has been 
prepared to extend the 
contract until the 
procurement process has 
been completed. 

Diamond Corner  
8/2/2/57-2011 

Supply of mobile data. 2 yrs 26 June 2012 
ends on 25 
June 2014. 

 R 2 376 000 pa Revised policy prepared 
and ready to be tabled 
before Council.  Request 
for an extension on the 
current contract is in 
process. 
 
 
 

Securelink Installation of IT systems 3 yrs Extended  Total contract Roll-out of the project is 



 

 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contract entered in to during  Year 0)  
Name of service 
provider (Entity 
or Municipal 
Department) 

Description of services 
rendered  by the services 
provider 

Start 
date of 
contract 

Expiry of 
contract 

Project 
Manager 

Contract value 
(R) 

Progress  

network. from 14 April 
2014 to 13 
March 2015 

value R 
49,500,000. 

in its final year; the 
project is running on 
schedule and according 
to project plan. Service 
delivery and support is 
satisfactory. 

Amysa 
Stationers CC  
8/2/2/49-2011 

Supply and delivery of original 
printer cartridges 

3 yrs 03 April 2014 
till 02 April 
2015 

 Budget of       R 
785,348, payable 
as and when 
service is 
required. 

Addenda extending 
contracts signed as per 
original tender 
specifications (3 year 
contract of which two 
years have lapsed).  The 
performance of the 
supplier is satisfactory 
and delivery is within the 
required time frames. 
Rotational use of the four 
appointed companies is 
in place and balanced.   

Sho Sho 
Industrial 
Supplier CC 
8/2/2/49-2011 

Supply and delivery of original 
printer cartridges 

3 yrs 03 April 2013 
till 02 April 
2014 
(renewal) 

 Budget of R 785 
348 payable as 
and when service 
is required. 

Addenda extending 
contracts signed as per 
original tender 
specifications (3 year 
contract of which one 
year has lapsed).  The 
performance of the 
supplier is satisfactory 
and delivery is within the 
required time frame. 



 

 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contract entered in to during  Year 0)  
Name of service 
provider (Entity 
or Municipal 
Department) 

Description of services 
rendered  by the services 
provider 

Start 
date of 
contract 

Expiry of 
contract 

Project 
Manager 

Contract value 
(R) 

Progress  

Rotational use of the four 
appointed companies is 
in place and balanced.   

Palmerton 
Cartridges CC   
8/2/2/49-2011 

Supply and delivery of original 
printer cartridges 

3 yrs 03 April 2013 
till 02 April 
2014 
(renewal) 

 Budget of R 785 
348 payable as 
and when service 
is required. 

Addenda extending 
contracts signed as per 
original tender 
specifications (3 year 
contract of which one 
year has lapsed).  The 
performance of the 
supplier is satisfactory 
and delivery is within the 
required time frame. 
Rotational use of the four 
appointed companies is 
in place and balanced.   

Sage Computer 
Technology (Pty) 
Ltd  8/2/2/49-
2011 

Supply and delivery of original 
printer cartridges 

3 yrs 03 April 2013 
till 02 April 
2014 
(renewal) 

 Budget of R 785 
348 payable as 
and when service 
is required. 

Addenda extending 
contracts signed as per 
original tender 
specifications (3 year 
contract of which one 
year has lapsed).  The 
performance of the 
supplier is satisfactory 
and delivery is within the 
required time frame. 
Rotational use of the four 
appointed companies is 
in place and balanced.   



 

 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contract entered in to during  Year 0)  
Name of service 
provider (Entity 
or Municipal 
Department) 

Description of services 
rendered  by the services 
provider 

Start 
date of 
contract 

Expiry of 
contract 

Project 
Manager 

Contract value 
(R) 

Progress  

VPN 
Technologies 

IT Networking Engineering 
Support and Internet services 

3 yrs 25 June 2013 
to 24 June 
2016. 

 The value 
depends on 
demand 

Troubleshooting and 
routing network 
assessments are done 
and the infrastructure is 
stable and performing 
well. 

Batloung 
Technologies 

Repair and maintain Council 
printers 

3 yrs 1 Sept. 2013 
to 31 August 
2016 

 R787 988.00 for 
the entire 
contract. 

The service provider is 
performing well in terms 
of the contract and 
repairs are done in an 
efficient manner. Turn-
around time on repairs is 
good and a good quality 
workmanship is 
maintained. 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT  
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT  
Standard bank Commercial banking Services. 3 yrs 01 July 2013 

to 30 June 
2015. 

Mr. Charles 
Steyn 

Use account as 
and when need 
arises. 

SLA   developed and 
signed. Auto safes 
installed and training to 
be finalized on all 
systems used. Transfer 
of auto-safes from ABSA 
to Standard Bank to be 
finalized. 

Lateral unison 
insurance 

Short term insurance. 3 years New con-tract 
started 1 July 
2012 to 
terminate on 

Mr. Andre 
Lubbe 

R2 437 335 .97 pa  
 
 

Proceeding well. Monthly 
meetings are held with 
the insurers where 
contractual issues as well 



 

 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contract entered in to during  Year 0)  
Name of service 
provider (Entity 
or Municipal 
Department) 

Description of services 
rendered  by the services 
provider 

Start 
date of 
contract 

Expiry of 
contract 

Project 
Manager 

Contract value 
(R) 

Progress  

30 June 
2015. 

as all claims submitted 
and progress in claims 
submitted are done 
discussed. 

Business 
Connexion 

Maintenance of the Venus 
System 

Annual 28 January 
2014 to 29 
January 
2015. 

Mr. Charles 
Steyn 

R307 850 paid as 
annual license fee   

The contract is 
proceeding well; calls are 
logged through the help 
desk and are dealt with 
effectively within 1 day. 

Payday Supply Software Annual Annual 
license fee 
renewable 
every July.  

Mr. Charles 
Steyn 

R156 967.74 pa Regular updates are 
received when legislation 
changes. Help desk is 
functioning well and 
professionally handled. 

Price Water 
Cooper House 

Baud Asset Management 
System 

Annual Annual 
license fee. 

Mr. Charles 
Steyn 

Based on 
quotation if the 
system requires 
maintenance 

The contract is 
proceeding well. When 
assistance is required the 
problems are resolved 
within 1 day. 

CQS Technology Case View for software to 
prepare financial statements. 

Annual Annually 
payable in 
February of 
each year. 

Mr. Charles 
Steyn 

R 87 415.20 pa Regular upgrades are 
provided in order to be 
GRAP compliant. 
Assistance is provided 
through the service 
provider’s help desk. 

Sure Zorgvliet 
Travel 

Travel Management Services 2 yrs 1 December 
2013 to 30 
November 
2015. 

 Ad-hoc The service provider is on 
the panel of travel 
agencies. No problems 
experienced in 



 

 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contract entered in to during  Year 0)  
Name of service 
provider (Entity 
or Municipal 
Department) 

Description of services 
rendered  by the services 
provider 

Start 
date of 
contract 

Expiry of 
contract 

Project 
Manager 

Contract value 
(R) 

Progress  

implementation. 
Nexus Travel Travel Management Services 2 yrs 1 December 

2013 to 30 
November 
2015. 

 Ad -hoc The service provider is on 
the panel of travel 
agencies. No problems 
experienced in 
implementation. 

MaxProf VAT review and recovery 3 yrs May 2014 – 
May 2017 

 15% of all VAT 
recovered. 

Implementation of the 
contract has just 
commenced – nothing to 
report yet. 

Mmapaballo Supply of newspapers 3 yrs Contract 
extended on 
a month to 
month basis 
pending the 
finalization of 
tender 
process. 

 The amount 
varies according 
to available funds 

Advert went out – 
technical evaluation to  
take place. 

Intenda Annual license fee for the 
Intenda system of the supply 
chain management system. 

12 
months 

1 August 
2014 to 30 31 
July 2015 

 R 40 498.04  VAT 
included paid in 
August 2014 as 
annual 

Contract is Proceeding 
well 

COMMUNITY SERVICES  
SPORTS & RECREATION  
Tenant -New 
Covenant 
Church(Lessee) 

Leasing of the Vereeniging 
theatre to tenant. 

12 
Months 

March 2014 
to March 
2015 

 R15 000,00 pm The lease agreement is 
in place and the tenant 
has taken occupation. 

Emfuleni Local Lease agreements for: 3 years Started July Mr. Pieter  Discussions relating to 



 

 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contract entered in to during  Year 0)  
Name of service 
provider (Entity 
or Municipal 
Department) 

Description of services 
rendered  by the services 
provider 

Start 
date of 
contract 

Expiry of 
contract 

Project 
Manager 

Contract value 
(R) 

Progress  

Municipality - Sharpeville Exhibition 
Center 

- Sharpeville Hall 
- Technorama 
- Mphahlalatsane 

Theater. 

2009 to June 
2012. Month 
to month 
contract is in 
place. 

Nieuwenhuizen R1 000 pm 
R1 000 pm 
 
R1 000 pm 
R1 000 pm 
 

lease of all Emfuleni 
properties underway.   

Lesedi 
Municipality 

Lease of : 
-Heidelberg Museum 

3 years Started July 
2009 to June 
2012. 
Month to 
month 
contract is in 
place. 
 

Mr. Pieter 
Nieuwenhuizen 

R1 000 pm 
 
 

Addenda in place 
extending the leases on a 
month to month basis 
pending properly 
considered lease 
agreements being 
developed, transfers of 
the properties where this 
should be done and 
cancellation of the 
contracts where 
necessary.  Discussions 
relating to the lease of all 
Lesedi properties 
underway.   

COMMUNITY SAFETY  
Securelink Maintenance of the CCTV 

network. 
3 years 15 February 

2014 – 14 
February 
2017 

 Total value for 
period of 3 yrs = 
R5 880 000;   
R155 000,00 pm 

Discussions relating to 
lease of all Emfuleni 
properties underway.   

DISASTER MANAGEMENT  
Sysman Public 
Safety  Systems 

Licensing of Software & 
Support. 

3 years 01 July 2014 
till 30 June 

 R221 863.11 pa. Contract implementation 
proceeding well. 



 

 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contract entered in to during  Year 0)  
Name of service 
provider (Entity 
or Municipal 
Department) 

Description of services 
rendered  by the services 
provider 

Start 
date of 
contract 

Expiry of 
contract 

Project 
Manager 

Contract value 
(R) 

Progress  

(Pty) Ltd 2017 
Sysman Public 
Safety  Systems 
(Pty) Ltd 

Maintenance of Hardware 3 years 01 July 2014 
till 30 June 
2017 

 R 14 521.56 pa. Contract implementation 
proceeding well. 

Gauteng 
Ambulance 
Services 

MOA for rendering of Call 
taking & Dispatching of 
Ambulance Calls 

1 year 01 July 2014 
till 30 June 
2015 

 R 65 940.00 
income per month 

Contract implementation 
proceeding well. 

Midvaal Local 
Municipality 

Fire fighting Services. 3 yrs 1/7/2013 - 
2016 

 As and when 
services are 
rendered and 
calculated in 
terms of 
promulgated 
tariffs and in the 
prescribed format. 

The contract is an agency 
agreement and is 
currently running 
smoothly.  Midvaal is 
charging SDM a flat rate 
of R1140 .00 per call. 
The only challenge with 
this contract is that it 
cannot be known how 
many fire incidents are 
going to occur in a 
relevant financial year 
therefore making it 
difficult to budget. 

Emfuleni Local 
Municipality 

Fire fighting Services. 3yrs 1 July 2013 – 
June 2016 

 As and when 
services are 
rendered and 
calculated in 
terms of 
promulgated 
tariffs and in the 
prescribed format. 

The contract is an agency 
agreement and is 
currently running 
smoothly. The only 
challenge with this 
contract is that it cannot 
be predicted how many 
fire incidents are going to 



 

 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contract entered in to during  Year 0)  
Name of service 
provider (Entity 
or Municipal 
Department) 

Description of services 
rendered  by the services 
provider 

Start 
date of 
contract 

Expiry of 
contract 

Project 
Manager 

Contract value 
(R) 

Progress  

occur in a relevant 
financial year therefore 
making it difficult to 
budget.   

Airborne Africa Rental of hangar space for 
Gyro Plane, tractor and other 
equipment 

3 yrs 1 July 2013 
to 30 June 
2016 
 

 R1 000.00 pm This contract is currently 
running smoothly. 

HEALTH AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT  
External Bursary 
Board Members 

Bursary committee 3 yrs 2014 - 2016  R500 per sitting 
allowance (Four 
meetings per 
annum) 

No problems in 
implementation reported. 

Bursary 
Contracts 

1 year Contract Annual Annual  R16 000 Per 
learner 

40 students awarded 
bursaries at R16 000 
each. Contracts signed 
with each and results 
closely followed up. 

 
HIV & AIDS DIRECTORATE   
Bonang Bophelo 
Development 
Organisation 
 
(ward-based 
coordinators) 

Management of 140 Emfuleni HIV&AIDS 
Ward-based coordinators’ daily door to 
door educational campaigns,  activities 
and ward-based programmes, including 
the payment of monthly stipend to 
coordinators   
 
 

12 
Months  

July 
2014-
June 
2015 
 

 
 

R 3, 436,800 
goes to payment 
of stipend of 
ward-based 
coordinators 
     AND  
R 343 680 for 
admin cost 

The contract is running 
smoothly with monthly 
narrative and expenditure 
reports to the District, which 
are then submitted to 
Province. 



 

 

 
(Funds are 
transferred 
quarterly to the 
service provider, 
upon receipt of 
narrative report 
and bank 
statement) 

Community 
Regeneration and 
Development 
Centre 
 
(ward-based 
coordinators) 

Management of 76 Midvaal and Lesedi 
HIV&AIDS Ward-based coordinators’ 
daily door to door educational campaigns,  
activities and ward-based programmes, 
including the payment of monthly stipend 
to coordinators   

12 
Months 

July 
2014-
June 
2015 
 

 R 1, 888,800 
goes towards the 
payment of ward-
based 
coordinators 
     AND 
188 880 for 
admin costs 
 
(Funds are 
transferred 
quarterly to the 
service provider, 
upon receipt of 
narrative report 
and bank 
statement). 

The contract is running 
smoothly with monthly 
narrative and expenditure 
reports to the District, which 
are then submitted to 
Province. 

 
SPED 

PLANNING & SPECIAL PROJECTS   
MDQ Compilation of precinct 

plan for the Sebokeng 
Cultural Precinct. 

16 
Months  

1/3/2013 to 30/6/2014. Contract 
extended to 14 December 2014 as 
a result of extension of scope. 
Addendum prepared. 

 R2 460 
164.86 for the 
entire contract 

Project divided into 2 phases namely the 
plan and construction phases. 1st phase has 
been completed. The 2nd phase of the 
project is being implemented. 

 



 

 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & TOURISM  
Vaal University 
of Technology 

Mandate to promote local 
economic development 

12 When all the parties 
have signed the 
contract. 

 R1 200 
000 pa 

This contract is between the SDM, VUT & 
DED Provincial Dept. SDM 8VUT has 
signed the contract and Province will sign 
during the first week of June. 

Gauteng 
Tourism 
Authority 

Financial assistance for the cost 
of printing and design of passport 
booklets for the tourism passport 
project 

4 
Months  

16 April 2014 to 31 
July 2014 Extended 
to 31 December 2014 

 R40 
000.00 
once off 

Project is in progress. There are no 
financial implications for the extension. 

 
PLANNING AND HOUSING PROJECTS   
Zidlaphi Kgomo & 
Associates  
 

Refurbishment of Eldorado 
Informal Trade Centre 

1 yr  10 December 2013 – 
9 December 2014 

 R 4 700 000 VAT 
included for the entire 
project. 

Contract implementation 
proceeding well. 

Zidlaphi Kgomo & 
Associates 

Constructing of wing 
extension at Eldorado building 

4 
Months  

11 August 2014 – 10 
December 2014 

 R3 361 518 Contract implementation 
proceeding well. 

TIE 
TRANSPORT INFRASTRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT   
Blue sands 
trading 106 
cc 

Upgrading of Jameson Park Sports 
Facilities 

6 Months 5 June 2013 – 
9 December 
2013. 

 R1,474 
653.70 for 
entire 
project 

Project has come to a standstill 
due to final amount of Lotto grant 
not being paid.  Second tranche 
received in July 2014. R1 080 
000 still outstanding. 

Blue Sands 
Trading 106 
cc 

Upgrading of Impumelelo Sports 
Facilities 

6 Months   
18 June 2013 
– 15 
December 
2013 
R1 000 pm 
 
 
 

 R1 826 
403.14 for 
entire 
project 

Project has come to a standstill 
due to final amount of Lotto grant 
not being paid.  Second tranche 
received in July 2014. R1 080 
000 still outstanding 

Tsekema Professional Civil Engineers appointed Until completion November  R1 324 Project has come to a standstill 



 

 

Consulting 
Engineers 

for the Design, Specification, 
Documentation and site Supervision for 
the Upgrading of various Sports Fields in 
the Lesedi Local municipality 

of construction 
contract 

2013 till end of 
retention 
period 

714.93 for 
entire 
project 

due to final amount of Lotto grant 
not being paid.  Second tranche 
received in July 2014. R1 080 
000 still outstanding 

 
LINCENCING  
Lesedi 
Municipality 

Lease of : 
-Lesedi 
Licensing. 
-Lesedi Testing 
Station. 
 

 Initial 
period -
3yrs 

Month-to-
month. 

 R70 476 pm 
 
R1 000 pm 

Addenda prepared extending the leases on a month 
to month basis pending properly considered lease 
agreements being developed, transfers of the 
properties where this should be done and 
cancellation of the contracts where necessary.   
Discussions relating to lease of all Lesedi properties 
underway.   

Emfuleni 
Local 
Municipality 

Lease 
agreements for: 
-Vereeniging 
License and 
Testing 
-Vanderbjilpark 
License and 
Testing 

3 yrs Month-to- 
month. 

  
R1 000 pm 
 
 
R1 000 pmburglary recently.  
Security needs to be 
upgraded substantially on 
this site. Services not being 
rendered, waiting for 
insurance claim.  

Discussions relating to lease of all Emfuleni 
properties underway.   

Midvaal 
Municipality 

Lease of: 
-Meyerton 
Licensing and 
Testing. 

2 yrs 1 July 
2013 – 
30 June 
2016 

 R16 600 pm 
 

Contract implementation proceeding well. 

 
ENVIRONMENT    



 

 

Local 
Municipalities 
obo the SDM 

Agency Agreement 
for the rendering of 
Municipal Health 
Services 

3 years  1 July 2014 – 
30 June 2015 

 Differs from 
municipality to 
municipality. 
Total approved 
budget for 
2014/15 is 
R16,764,249 

New contract in place. 

Zanokuhle 
Services 

Meyeton -Air 
Quality Monitoring 
station maintenance 
and repairs 

16 
Months 

1 September 
2014 – 30 
December 
2015 

 R748 796.46 Exchange rates have affected the contract as 
equipment has to be ordered from abroad. Another 
challenge is the security of the equipment at the 
Meyerton station. There was another burglary, and 
the insurance claim has not been finaised. The end 
result is that the services is currently not being 
rendered. 
 

 
MUNICIPAL MANAGER  

 

Grant Thornton 
(Pty) Ltd 

Performance of 
internal audit 
function for the 
municipality 

3 yrs 03 October 
2011 till 02 
September 
2014 

 R1 906 992 for 
the entire 
contract 

On track. The service provider is delivering the project 
as per contracted deliverables. 

The Oliphant 
Institute of 
Learnership 

Youth Development 
Programme 

3 yrs 4 March 2014 
– 3 March 
2017 

 R100 000 for the 
entire contract 

Contract implementation proceeding. 
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APPENDIX J – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 
 

Disclosures of Financial Interests 

Period 1 July  to 30 June of Year 0 (Current Year) 

Position Name Description of Financial interests* 
(Nil / Or details) 

 
(Executive) Mayor 

 
Simon Mohale Mofokeng NIL 

Member of Mayoral Committee 

Simon Mofokeng 
Busisiwe Modiskeng 
Christina Sale 
Yusuf Mahomed 
Busisiwe Mncube 
Maipato Tsokolibane 
Petrus Tsotetsi  
Melina Gumba  
Assistance Mshudulu 
Simon Maphalla  
Makhomo Raikane  

  
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
 

 
Councillors 

 

Lulama Gamede 
Johanna Masilo 
Abram Majola 
Daddy Mollo 
Frederich Peters 
Andrea Parson 
Patrricia Baloyi 
Teboho Maraka 
Shadrack Pooe 
Mluleki Nkosi 
Thembekile Ramothibe  
Adv Stephanus Roos  
Denis Ryder 
Martha Radebe 
Nomsa Mooi 
Pius Maseko 
Paulina Matsei 
Daniel Hlongwane 
Louw Ngubane 
Florence Dlangalala  
Abel Morolong 
Siza Rani 
Dimakatso Malisa 
Lahliwe Rapapadi 
Sibongile Soxuza 
Joseph Lehlake 
Thandi Maseko 
Griffiths Tibane 
Fetty Mnguni  

NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 



 

 

Danie Hoffman  
Jaco Karsten  
Simon Nkosi 
Rohan Louw 
Yvonne Coetzee 
Attie Moleko 
Abel Radebe 

NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

Municipal Manager Yunus Chamda NIL  

Chief Financial Officer Brendon Scholtz  NIL 

Chief Operations Officer Thomas Lindelo Mkaza  NIL 

Executive Directors 

 
Mapula Phiri-Khaole 
Morongwe Mazibuko 
Sorrious Manele 
Rudolph Natshivhale 
Andries Mapetla 
Juda Dlamini 
Julius Tsoho 
 

NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
 

Other S57 Officials  N/A  N/A 

* Financial interests to be disclosed even if they incurred for only part of the year. See MBRR SA34A                                                                                           
T J 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

APPENDIX K:  REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND 
BY SOURCE 

 

APPENDIX K (i): REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE 
 

Revenue Collection Performance by Vote 

            R' 000 

Vote Description 

Year -1 Current: Year 0 Year 0 Variance 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjusted 
Budget 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustments 
Budget 

Executive and council 13 239 24 970 29 048 19 168 -30% -52% 

Budget and treasury 
office 231 242 473 238 318 376 257 669 729 238 391 652 

0% -8% 

Corporate services 16 803 879 21 303 143 20 496 864 19 462 922 -9% -5% 

Community and social 
services 26 173 805 6 651 363 6 626 072 8 127 101 

18% 18% 

Public safety 2 315 4 626 12 850 6 684 31% -92% 

Housing 539 922 500 707 -30% 29% 

Planning and 
development 4 945 398 18 283 551 18 266 464 9 901 200 

-85% -84% 

Road transport 62 167 525 64 979 314 64 987 354 58 538 451 -11% -11% 

Environmental 
protection 532 901 066 1 944 979 

-91939% -99% 

        
 

    

  
 

      
 

  

  
 

      
 

  

  
 

      
 

  

  
 

      
 

  

  
 

      
 

  

Total Revenue by Vote 
           341 

350  
           350 

467  
           368 

091  
           334 

449  
                     

(1) 
        

(0) 

Variances are calculated by dividing the difference between actual and original/adjustments budget by the 
actual. This table is aligned to MBRR table A3 T K.1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

APPENDIX K (ii): REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY SOURCE 
 

Year -1

Actual Original 

Budget

Adjustments 

Budget

Actual Original 

Budget

Adjustments 

Budget

Property rates

Property rates - penalties & collection charges

Service Charges - electricity revenue

Service Charges - water revenue

Service Charges - sanitation revenue

Service Charges - refuse revenue

Service Charges - other

Rentals of facilities and equipment 7 927               9 104               9 086               8 928               -2% -2%

Interest earned - external investments 2 116               2 060               2 100               1 607               -28% -31%

Interest earned - outstanding debtors

Dividends received

Fines

Licences and permits 62 152             65 855             64 955             58 520             -13% -11%

Agency services 7 246               7 307               6 472               6 553               -12% 1%

Transfers recognised - operational 259 627           260 552           260 552           254 077           -3% -3%

Other revenue 2 282               5 590               24 926             4 763               -17% -423%

Gains on disposal of PPE

Enviromental Proctection

Total Revenue (excluding capital transfers 

and contributions)

341 350           350 467           368 091           334 449           -4.79% -10.06%

T K.2
Variances are calculated by dividing the difference between actual and original/adjustments budget by the actual. This table is aligned to 

MBRR table A4.

Revenue Collection Performance by Source

R '000

Description

Year 0 Year 0 Variance

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

APPENDIX L:  CONDITIONAL GRANTS RECEIVED: EXCLUDING MIG 
 

Conditional Grants: excluding MIG 

R' 000 

Details 

Budget Adjustments  
Budget 

Actual Variance Major 
conditions 
applied by 
donor 

(continue 
below if 

necessary) 

Budget Adjustments  
 Budget 

Neighbourhood Development 
Partnership Grant 18 255 000 18 255 000 4 212 638 -333% -333%   

  Municipal Systems 
Improvement 890 000 890 000 703 310 -27% -27%   

  Other transfers/grants FMG  1 250 000 1 250 000 1 250 904 0% 0%   

EPWP grant 1 000 000 1 000 000 1 000 140 0% 0%   

LED grant     1 418 253 100% 100%   

Other transfers / Grants     379 948 100% 100%   

HIV & AIDS grant 6 372 000 6 372 000 7 936 269 20% 20%   

              

Total 27 767 000 27 767 000 16 901 462 -64% -64%   

* This includes Neighbourhood Development Partnership Grant, Public Transport Infrastructure and Systems 
Grant and any other grant excluding Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG) which is dealt with in the main 
report, see T 5.8.3. Variances are calculated by dividing the difference between actual and 
original/adjustments budget by the actual. Obtain a list of grants from national and provincial government. 

                                                                                 
T L 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

APPENDIX M:  CAPITAL EXPENDITURE – NEW & UPGRADE/RENEWAL 
PROGRAMMES 

 

APPENDIX M (i): CAPITAL EXPENDITURE - NEW ASSETS PROGRAMME 
 

Capital Expenditure - New Assets Programme* 

R '000 

Description 
Year -1 Year 0 Planned Capital expenditure 

Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

FY + 1 FY + 2 FY + 3 

Capital expenditure by Asset 
Class               

Infrastructure - Total 
                   
18  

           1 
300  

                 1 
300  

                   1 
272  

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Infrastructure: Road transport 
- Total 

                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Roads, Pavements & Bridges               

Storm water               

Infrastructure: Electricity - 
Total 

                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Generation               

Transmission & Reticulation               

Street Lighting               

Infrastructure: Water - Total 
                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Dams & Reservoirs               

Water purification               

Reticulation               

Infrastructure: Sanitation - 
Total 

                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Reticulation               

Sewerage purification               

Infrastructure: Other - Total 
                   
18  

           1 
300  

                 1 
300  

                   1 
272  

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Waste Management               

Transportation               

Gas               

Other 17 820 1 300 000 1 300 000 1 272 489       

                

Community - Total 
                    
–   

                 
–   

                       
–   

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Parks & gardens               

Sports-fields & stadia               

Swimming pools               

Community halls               

Libraries               



 

 

Capital Expenditure - New Assets Programme* 

R '000 

Description 
Year -1 Year 0 Planned Capital expenditure 

Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

FY + 1 FY + 2 FY + 3 

Recreational facilities               

Fire, safety & emergency               

Security and policing               

Buses               

Clinics 
Museums & Art Galleries 

              

              

Cemeteries               

Social rental housing               

Other               

        
Capital Expenditure - New Assets Programme* 

R '000 

Description 
Year -1 Year 0 Planned Capital expenditure 

Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

FY + 1 FY + 2 FY + 3 

Capital expenditure by Asset 
Class 

              

Heritage assets - Total 
                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Buildings                    

Other               

                

Investment properties - Total 
                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Housing development               

Other               

                

Other assets 
            
 12 805  

        
  15 402  

               
 17 188  

                
  14 819  

        
17 238  

       
 12 720  

         
 7 248  

General vehicles 0 0 0 215 754 0 0 0 

Specialised vehicles   0 0   0 0 0 

Plant & equipment 44 781 0 0 161 523 490 000 0 0 
Computers - 

hardware/equipment 12 193 860 
10 268 

000 15 268 000 13 538 645 
11 999 

996 
7 853 

996 
3 008 

112 
Furniture and other office 

equipment 566 299 1 993 053 1 893 053 903 134 700 000 600 000 632 400 

Abattoirs   0 0   0 0 0 

Markets   0 0   0 0 0 

Civic Land and Buildings   3 141 060 27 225 0 
3 247 

740 
4 266 

318 
3 607 

966 

Other Buildings   0 0   0 0 0 

Other Land   0 0   800 000 0 0 

Surplus Assets - (Investment or   0 0   0 0 0 



 

 

Capital Expenditure - New Assets Programme* 

R '000 

Description 
Year -1 Year 0 Planned Capital expenditure 

Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

FY + 1 FY + 2 FY + 3 

Inventory) 

Other   0 0   0 0 0 

                

Agricultural assets 
                    
–   

                 
–   

                       
–   

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

List sub-class               

                

                

Biological assets 
                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

List sub-class               

                

                

Intangibles 
                 
452  

           
 1 000  

                 
 1 000  

                    
1 154  

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Computers - software & 
programming 452 319 1 000 000 1 000 000 1 153 683       

Other (list sub-class)               

                

Total Capital Expenditure on new 
assets 

           
  13 275  

         
 17 702  

               
 19 488  

                  
17 245  

       
 17 238  

       
 12 720  

         
 7 248  

  
      

  

Specialised vehicles 
                    
–   

                 
–   

                       
–   

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Refuse               

Fire               

Conservancy               

Ambulances               

* Note: Information for this table may be sourced from MBRR (2009: Table SA34a)     T M.1 

        

         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

APPENDIX M (ii): CAPITAL EXPENDITURE – UPGRADE/RENEWAL 
PROGRAMME 

        
Capital Expenditure -  Upgrade/Renewal Programme* 

R '000 

Description 

Year -1 Year 0 Planned Capital expenditure 

Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

FY + 1 FY + 2 FY + 3 

Capital expenditure by Asset 
Class               

Infrastructure - Total 
                    
–   

                 
–   

                       
–   

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Infrastructure: Road transport –
Total 

                    
–   

                 
–   

                       
–   

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Roads, Pavements & Bridges               

Storm water               

Infrastructure: Electricity – 
Total 

                    
–   

                 
–   

                       
–   

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Generation               

Transmission & Reticulation               

Street Lighting               

Infrastructure: Water - Total 
                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Dams & Reservoirs               

Water purification               

Reticulation               

Infrastructure: Sanitation – 
Total 

                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Reticulation               

Sewerage purification               

Infrastructure: Other - Total 
                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Waste Management               

Transportation               

Gas               

Other               

                

Community 
                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Parks & gardens               

Sportsfields & stadia               

Swimming pools               

Community halls               

Libraries               

Recreational facilities               

Fire, safety & emergency               

Security and policing               

Buses               

Clinics               



 

 

        
Capital Expenditure -  Upgrade/Renewal Programme* 

R '000 

Description 

Year -1 Year 0 Planned Capital expenditure 

Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

FY + 1 FY + 2 FY + 3 

Museums & Art Galleries               

Cemeteries 
Social rental housing 

              

              

Other               

                

Heritage assets 
                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Buildings               

Other               

Capital Expenditure -  Upgrade/Renewal Programme* 

R '000 

Description 

Year -1 Year 0 Planned Capital expenditure 

Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

FY + 1 FY + 2 FY + 3 

Capital expenditure by Asset 
Class               

Investment properties 
                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Housing development               

Other               

                

Other assets 
                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

General vehicles               

Specialised vehicles               

Plant & equipment               

Computers - hardware/equipment               
Furniture and other office 

equipment               

Abattoirs               

Markets               

Civic Land and Buildings               

Other Buildings               

Other Land               
Surplus Assets - (Investment or 

Inventory)               

Other               

                

Agricultural assets 
                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

List sub-class               

                

                

Biological assets 
                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   



 

 

        
Capital Expenditure -  Upgrade/Renewal Programme* 

R '000 

Description 

Year -1 Year 0 Planned Capital expenditure 

Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

FY + 1 FY + 2 FY + 3 

List sub-class               

                

                

Intangibles 
                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Computers - software & 
programming               

Other (list sub-class)               

                

Total Capital Expenditure on 
renewal of existing assets 

                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

                

Specialised vehicles 
                    
–   

                 
–     

                         
–   

               
–   

               
–   

               
–   

Refuse               

Fire               

Conservancy               

Ambulances               

* Note: Information for this table may be sourced from MBRR (2009: Table SA34b)   T M.2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

APPENDIX N – CAPITAL PROGRAMME BY PROJECT YEAR 0 
 

Capital Programme by Project: Year 0 

R' 000 

Capital Project Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual Variance 
(Act - Adj)                        

% 

Variance 
(Act - OB)                     

% 

            

Water           

"Project A"           

"Project B"           

"Project C"           

Sanitation/Sewerage           

"Project A"           

"Project B"           

Electricity           

"Project A"           

"Project B"           

Housing           

"Project A"           

"Project B"           

Refuse removal            

"Project A"           

"Project B"           

Stormwater            

"Project A"           

"Project B"           

Economic development           

"Project A"           

"Project B"           

Sports, Arts & Culture           

"Project A"           

"Project B"           

Environment           

"Project A"           

"Project B"           

Health           

"Project A"           

"Project B"           

Safety and Security           

CCTV Project 1 300 000 1 300 000 1 262 080 -3% -3% 

"Project B"       #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 



 

 

Capital Programme by Project: Year 0 

R' 000 

Capital Project Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual Variance 
(Act - Adj)                        

% 

Variance 
(Act - OB)                     

% 

ICT and Other           

Computer & Printers 3 120 000 2 904 245 1 577 029 -84% -98% 

Optic Fibre 7 200 000 12 200 000 12 391 429 2% 42% 

Internal Networks 948 000 948 000 845 892 -12% -12% 

Furniture & Equipment 1 993 053 1 893 053 682 665 -177% -192% 

Vehicles 0 215 755 215 754 0% 100% 

Licensing Centre 3 141 060 27 225 27 225 0% -11437% 

T N 

 
 
 



 

 

 

APPENDIX O – CAPITAL PROGRAMME BY PROJECT BY WARD YEAR 0 
 

Not applicable to SDM 
 

APPENDIX P – SERVICE CONNECTION BACKLOGS AT SCHOOLS AND 
CLINICS 

 

Not applicable to SDM 
 

APPENDIX Q – SERVICE BACKLOGS EXPERIENCED BY THE 
COMMUNITY WHERE ANOTHER SPHERE OF GOVERNMENT IS 

RESPONSIBLE FOR SERVICE PROVISION 
 

Not applicable  
 

APPENDIX R – DECLARATION OF LOANS AND GRANTS MADE BY THE 
MUNICIPALITY 

 

Not applicable  
 

APPENDIX S – NATIONAL AND PROVINCIAL OUTCOMES FOR LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT 

 

Not applicable  
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General Information 
      
      

The following is included in the scope of operation  District Municipality – DC42 

Grading of local authority  

Capacity of Municipality 

Municipal Manager 

Grade 11 Local Authority 

Medium term capacity Municipality 

Yunus Chamda 

Chief Finance Officer (CFO)  Mr Brendon Scholtz 

Registered office  Municipal Offices 

 Civic Centre 

 Cnr. Beaconsfield & Leslie street 

 Vereeniging 

 1930 

Business address  Municipal Offices 

 Civic Centre 

 Cnr. Beaconsfield & Leslie street 

 Vereeniging 

 1930 

Postal address  PO Box 471 

 Vereeniging 

 1930 

Bankers  ABSA Bank Limited 

Auditors  Auditor General South Africa 

 
Executive Mayor     Councilor MS Mofokeng 
 
Speaker      Councilor BJ Modisakeng 
 
Chief Whip      Councilor MC Sale 
 
Members of Mayoral Committee    Councilor PB Tsotetsi 

       Councilor ME Tsokolibane 

       Councilor TS Maphalla  

       Councilor B Mncube 

       Councilor MM Gomba 

       Councilor MD Raikane 

       Councilor YJ Mahommed 

       Councilor SA Mshudulu 
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Index 
      

      

The reports and statements set out below comprise the financial statements presented to the provincial legislature: 

Index Page 

Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval 3 

Accounting Officer's Report 4 

Statement of Financial Position 5 

Statement of Financial Performance 6 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 7 

Cash Flow Statement 8 

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 9 - 10 

Accounting Policies 11 - 22 

Notes to the Financial Statements 23 - 44 
Abbreviations Abbreviations 

DBSA Development Bank of South 

Africa 

DBSA Development Bank of South Africa 

GRAP Generally Recognised 

Accounting Practice 

GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 

IAS International Accounting Standards IAS International Accounting Standards 

IMFO Institute of Municipal Finance 

Officers 

IMFO Institute of Municipal Finance Officers 

IPSAS International Public Sector 

Accounting Standards 

IPSAS International Public Sector Accounting Standards 

MMC Member of the Mayoral 

Committee 

MMC Member of the Mayoral Committee 

MFMA Municipal Finance Management 

Act 

MFMA Municipal Finance Management Act 

MIG Municipal Infrastructure Grant 

(Previously CMIP) 

MIG Municipal Infrastructure Grant (Previously CMIP) 

GAMAP Generally Accepted Municipal 

Accounting Practice 

GAMAP Generally Accepted Municipal Accounting Practice 

PPE Property Plant and Equipment PPE Property Plant and Equipment 

SCM Supply Chain Management SCM Supply Chain Management 
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Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval 
      

      

The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003), to maintain adequate accounting 
records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information 
included in this report. It is the responsibility of the accounting officer to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present 
the state of affairs of the municipality as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the 
period then ended. The external auditors are responsible for reporting on the fair presentation of the annual financial 
statements.  

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practices (GRAP). 

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates. 

The accounting officer acknowledges that he is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by 
the municipality and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the accounting 
officer to meet these responsibilities, the accounting officer sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error 
or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined 
framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These 
controls are monitored throughout the municipality and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in 
ensuring the municipality’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The 
focus of risk management in the municipality is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk 
across the municipality. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the municipality endeavors to minimise it by ensuring 
that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behavior are applied and managed within predetermined 
procedures and constraints. 

The accounting officer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management that the system of 
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual 
financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, 
assurance against material misstatement or loss. 

The accounting officer has reviewed the municipality’s cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2014 and, in the light of this 
review and the current financial position, he is satisfied that the municipality has or has access to adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 

The financial statements set out on pages 5 to 42, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the 
accounting officer on 29 August, 2014 and were signed on its behalf by: 

 

 

 

_______________________________  

 

Mr. Yunus Chamda    

Municipal Manager    



Sedibeng District Municipality 
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June, 2014 

4 
 

 

Accounting Officer's Report 
      

      

The accounting officer submits his report for the year ended 30 June, 2014. 

1. Incorporation 

The municipality was incorporated on 1 January 1988 and obtained its certificate to commence business on the same day. 

2. Going concern 

We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June, 2014, the municipality had accumulated surplus of R 107,334,021 and that the 
municipality's total assets exceed its liabilities by R 107,334,021. 

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis 
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

3. Accounting policies 
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with the prescribed Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practices (GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board as the prescribed framework by National Treasury. 

4. Accounting Officer 

: 
Name Nationality 

Mr. Yunus Chamda RSA 

5. Bankers 

Council has appointed Standard Bank as the new bankers during the year. While we are currently busy with the transition 
process ABSA bank was still used as the Primary banker. 

6. Auditors 
 
The Auditor General will continue in office for the next financial period. 
7. Cost cutting measures  

Following the global economic crisis of 2009 and in line with MFMA Circular 48, the executive management of Sedibeng 
District Municipality had taken the decision to make conscientious efforts to increase revenue and decrease operating 
expenses by: 

 Increasing revenue through  Cost containment measures   

 • Optimizing all revenue streams; • Educating staff to be more conscientious  

 • Reviewing billing processes; • Better cash management  

 • Rigorously applying credit control; • Claiming discounts from creditors/ suppliers  

 • Tightening internal control measures and 
SCM processes  

• Institutionalising discussion on under-provision of 
equitable share 

 

  • Value-for-money spending and application of 
economies-of-scale procurement 

 

  • Closer monitoring of repairs & maintenance will lead 
to reduction in productivity losses 

 

  • Reducing & reviewing discretionary spending  
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June, 2014  
      

Figures in Rand Note(s)  2014  2013 as 
restated 

      
      

Assets      

Current Assets      
Inventories 6   382,653   220,090 
Receivables from exchange transactions 7   8,178,596   9,349,885 
VAT receivable 8   -   18,016 
Construction of assets in progress 5   10,206,208   1,701,721 
Cash and cash equivalents 9   14,975,752   6,915,829 
      

    33,743,209   18,205,541 
      

Non-Current Assets      
Property, plant and equipment 2   165,758,848   177,853,078 
Intangible assets 3   1,474,430   987,106 
      

    167,233,278   178,840,184 
      

Total Assets     200,976,487   197,840,184 
      

Liabilities      

Current Liabilities      

Finance lease obligation 37  247,199 225,439
Payables from exchange transactions 12   76,538,755   49,136,833 
VAT payable 8   900,504   - 
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 10   14,667,519   9,824,678 
Provisions 11   1,245,029   1,926,700 
      

Total Current Liabilities     93,599,006   61,113,650 
 
Non-Current Liabilities 

     

Finance lease obligation 37  43,460 290,659
Total Non-Current Liabilities     43,460   290,659 
Total Liabilities    93,642,466 61,404,309
      

Net Assets     107,334,021   135,641,416 
      

Net Assets      

Accumulated surplus    107,334,021   135,641,416 
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Statement of Financial Performance 
      

Figures in Rand Note(s)  2014  2013 as 
restated 

      
      

Revenue   
    

Exchange Revenue  
    

Sale of goods     3,661,592   1,394,760 
Rental of facilities and equipment     8,928,134   7,926,622 
Income from agency services     6,553,216   7,246,453 
Licences and permits    58,520,058   62,151,875 
Other income  16   1,101,699   887,712 
Interest received – investment  21   1,607,476   2,115,595 
Non-exchange Revenue      
Government grants & subsidies  15   254,076,689   259,626,688 
      

Total revenue      334,448,864   341,349,705 
      

Expenditure   
    

Personnel  18   (200,806,522)   (203,124,985) 
Remuneration of councillors  19   (10,709,156)   (10,284,043) 
Depreciation and amortisation  22   (28,018,728)   (26,707,941) 
Finance cost   (38,340) (47,186)
Debt impairment  20   (66,567)   (125,855) 
Public participation     (8,450)   (123,529) 
Repairs and maintenance     (4,316,120)   (4,813,629) 
Contracted services  24   (36,818,234)   (41,698,904) 
Grants and subsidies paid  25   (11,145,127)   (5,038,185) 
General Expenses  17   (70,401,637)   (62,995,437) 
      

Total expenditure      (362,324,744)   (354,941,010) 
      

Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities     (134,381)   (163,960) 
      
      

Deficit for the year      (28,014,398)   (13,773,949) 
      

Attributable to:      
Owners of the controlling entity     (28,014,398)   (13,773,949) 
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
     

Figures in Rand 
Note Accumulated 

surplus 
 Total net 

assets 
     
     
     
     

Opening Balance at 1 July, 2012  previously stated    145,575,494   145,575,494 
Adjustments     
Correction of errors 29 1,817,907 1,817,907
Balance at 1 July, 2012 as restated    143,757,587   143,757,587 
Changes in net assets     
Adjustment of asset life    6,256,200   6,256,200 
Transfer from / (to) reserves   (598,422)   (598,422) 
     

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets   5,657,778   5,657,778 
Surplus (Deficit) for the year as previously reported   (13,120,598)   (13,120,598) 
Correction of errors 29 653,351 653,351
Surplus (Deficit) for the year   (13,773,949)   (13,773,949) 
     

Total recognised income and expenses for the year   (8,116,171)   (8,116,171) 
     
     

     

Balance at 1 July, 2013 as restated    135,641,418   135,641,418 
Changes in net assets     
Transfer from / (to) reserves   (292,999)   (292,999) 
     

Surplus (Deficit) for the year   (28,014,398)   (28,014,398) 
     

Total recognised income and expenses for the year   (28,307,397)   (28,307,397) 
     
     

Balance at 30 June, 2014    107,334,021   107,334,021 
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Cash Flow Statement 
      

Figures in Rand  Note(s)  2014  2013 as 
restated 

      
      

Cash flows from operating activities 
      

Receipts   
     

Grants     260,904,530   256,658,300 
Interest income     1,607,476   2,115,595 
Other receipts     15,459,827   23,239,285 
Licence Receipts     203,482,157   204,498,592 
      

     481,453,990   486,511,772 
      

      

Payments   
     

Employee costs     (211,057,771)   (213,016,843) 
Suppliers     (125,226,936)   (123,244,164) 
Licensing Authority     (119,765,595)   (142,413,835) 
      

     (456,050,302)   (478,674,842) 
      

Net cash flows from operating activities  26   25,403,688   7,836,930 
      

Cash flows from investing activities 
      

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  2   (16,091,545)   (13,511,488) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  2   165,242   81,798 
Purchase of other intangible assets  3   (1,153,683)   (452,319) 
      

Net cash flows from investing activities     (17,079,986)   (13,882,009) 
 
Cash flow from Financing activities 
 
Finance lease payments 

  

(263,779) 468,912
      

      

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent s     8,059,923   (5,576,167) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year     6,915,829   12,491,996 
      

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  9   14,975,752   6,915,829 
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amount s 
       

Budget on Accrual  Basis        

       

Figures in Rand 

Approved 
budget 

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts 
on comparable 

basis 

Difference 
between final 
budget and 

actual 

 

       
       

Statement of Financial Performance 

Revenue 
     

 

Revenue from exchange 
transactions  

  
 

 
 

 

Sale of goods  2,808,000  (34,805)  2,773,195  3,661,592  888,397  
Rental of facilities and equipment  9,103,570  (17,468)  9,086,102  8,928,134  (157,968)  
Income from agency services  7,307,390  (835,068)  6,472,322  6,553,216  80,894  
Licences and permits  65,854,802  (900,000)  64,954,802  58,520,058  (6,434,744)  
Other income - (rollup)  2,781,569  19,370,751  22,152,320  1,101,699  (21,050,621)  
Interest received - investment  2,060,000  40,084  2,100,084  1,607,476  (492,608)  
       

Total revenue from exchange 
transactions  

 89,915,331  17,623,494  107,538,825  80,372,175  (27,166,650)  

       

Revenue from non-exchange 
transactions  

  
 

 
 

 

Taxation revenue   
 

 
 

 
Government grants & subsidies  260,552,000  -  260,552,000  254,076,689  (6,475,311)  
       

Total revenue  
 

 350,467,331  17,623,494  368,090,825  334,448,864  (33,641,961)  
      

Expenditure 
     

 
Personnel  (195,574,243)  (4,732,682)  (200,306,925)  (200,806,522)  (499,597)  
Remuneration of councillors  (10,579,993)  (354,455)  (10,934,448)  (10,709,156)  225,292  
Depreciation and amortisation  (23,265,556)  (4,523,600)  (27,789,156)  (28,018,728)  (229,572)  
Finance cost  -  -  -  (38,340)  (38,340)  
Debt impairment  -  (66,600)  (66,600)  (66,567)  33  
Public Participation  (160,540)  150,000  (10,540)  (8,450)  2,090  
Repairs and maintenance  (4,495,894)  76,372  (4,419,522)  (4,316,120)  103,402  
Contracted Services  (39,560,241)  268,786  (39,291,455)  (36,818,234)  2,473,221  
Grants and subsidies paid  (16,013,158)  4,868,000  (11,145,158)  (11,145,127)  31  
General Expenses  (60,687,929)  (10,231,556)  (70,919,485)  (70,401,637)  517,848  
       

Total expenditure   (350,337,554)  (14,545,735)  (364,883,289)  (362,328,881)  2,554,408  
       

Operating deficit   129,777  3,077,759  3,207,536  (27,880,017)  (31,087,553)  
Loss on disposal of assets and 
liabilities 

 50,000  20,000  70,000  (134,381)  (204,381)  

       

Actual Amount on Comparable 
Basis as Presented in the 
Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement  

 179,777  3,097,759  3,277,536  (28,014,398)  (31,291,934)  
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Difference 
between final 
budget and 

actual 

 

       
       

10 
 

  

Statement of Financial Position 

Assets   
 

 
 

 

Current Assets   
 

 
 

 
Inventories  -  -  -  382,653  382,653  
Receivables from exchange 
transactions 

 43,990,203  -  43,990,203  8,178,596  (35,811,607)  

Construction of assets in 
progress 

 -  -  -  10,206,208  10,206,208  

Cash and cash equivalents  33,125,000  (19,154,357)  13,970,643  14,975,752  1,005,109  
       

  77,115,203  (19,154,357)  57,960,846  33,743,209  (24,217,637)  
       

Non-Current Assets   
 

 
 

 
Property, plant and equipment  140,406,113  1,786,165  142,192,278  165,758,848  23,566,570  
Intangible assets  2,320,000  -  2,320,000  1,474,430  (845,570)  
       

  142,726,113  1,786,165  144,512,278  166,965,441  22,453,163  
       

Total Assets   219,841,316  (17,368,192)  202,473,124  200,976,487  (1,496,637)  
       

Liabilities   
 

 
 

 

Current Liabilities   
 

 
 

 
Finance lease liability  -   -  290,659  290,569  
Payables from exchange 
transactions 

 61,483,000  (20,990,409)  40,492,591  76,538,755  36,046,164  

VAT payable  -  -  -  900,504  900,504  
Unspent conditional grants and 
receipts 

 3,000,000  -  3,000,000  14,667,519  11,667,519  

Provisions  2,027,616  -  2,027,616  1,245,029  (782,587)  
       

  66,510,616  (20,990,409)  45,520,207  93,642,466  48,122,259  
       

Total Liabilities   66,510,616  (20,990,409)  45,520,207  93,642,466  48,122,259  
       

Net Assets   153,330,700  3,622,217  156,952,917  107,334,021  (49,618,896)  
       

Net Assets   
 

 
 

 

Net Assets Attributable to 
Owners of Controlling Entity  

  
 

 
 

 

Reserves   
 

 
 

 

Accumulated surplus  153,330,700  3,622,217  156,952,917  107,334,021  (49,618,896)  
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Accounting Policies 
      
      

 
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
1.1    BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with the 
historical cost basis unless otherwise stated.  Under this basis the effects of transactions and other events are recognised 
when they occur and are recorded in the financial statements within the period to which they relate. 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the effective Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practices (GRAP) prescribed by the Minister of Finance in terms of General Notices 991 of 2005 and General 
Notice 516 of 2008, including any interpretations and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board  

Accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions not covered by the above GRAP have been developed in 
accordance with paragraphs 7, 11 and 12 of GRAP 3.  These accounting policies and the applicable disclosures have been 
based on the South African Statements of Generally Accepted Municipal Accounting Practices (SA GAMAP) including any 
interpretations of such statements issued by the Accounting Practices Board. 
 
The Minister of Finance has, in terms of General Notice 1290 of 2008 exempted compliance with certain of the above-
mentioned standards and aspects or parts of these standards.  Details of the exemptions applicable to the municipality have 
been provided in the notes to the annual statements. 

 
These accounting policies are consistent with those of the previous financial year. 
 
The following GRAP standards have been approved and are effective: 
GRAP 1 - Presentation of financial statements 
GRAP 2 - Cash flow statements 
GRAP 3 - Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors 
GRAP 4 - The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates 
GRAP 5 - Borrowing costs 
GRAP 6 - Consolidated and separate financial statements 
GRAP 7 - Investments in associates 
GRAP 8 - Interest in joint ventures 
GRAP 9 - Revenue from exchange transactions 
GRAP 10 - Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies 
GRAP 11 - Construction contracts 
GRAP 12 - Inventories 
GRAP 13 - Leases 
GRAP 14 - Events after the reporting date 
GRAP 16 - Investment property 
GRAP 17 - Property, plant and equipment 
GRAP 19 - Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
GRAP 21 - Impairment of non-cash generating assets 
GRAP 23 - Revenue from non-exchange transactions 
GRAP 24 - Presentation of budget information 
GRAP 25 - Employee Benefits 
GRAP 26 - Impairment of cash generating assets 
GRAP 31 - Intangible assets 
GRAP 103 - Heritage assets 
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GRAP 104 - Financial instruments 
GRAP 100 - Non-current assets held for sale 
GRAP 101 - Agriculture 
 
The following GRAP statements have been approved but are not yet effective: 
GRAP 18 - Segment reporting 
GRAP 105 - Transfer of functions between entities under common control 
GRAP 106 - Transfer of functions between entities not under common control 
GRAP 107 - Mergers 

 Offsets  
Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting is required or permitted by a Standard 
of GRAP.  

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these annual financial statements are set out below. 

1.2    PRESENTATION CURRENCY 

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand and are rounded to the nearest Rand. 

1.3    SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES, JUDGMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

1.3.1 Going Concern  
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 
 

1.3.2 Significant Estimates, Judgments and Assumptions  

In preparing the annual financial statements to conform with the Standards of GRAP, management is required to make 
estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related 
disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgment are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual 
results in the future may differ from these estimates.   

All significant estimates, judgments and underlying assumptions are reviewed on constant basis.  All necessary revisions of 
significant estimates are recognised in the period during such revisions as well as in any future affected periods. 

Specific areas where these significant estimation uncertainties as well as critical judgments and assumptions were made in 
the application of accounting policies with the most significant effect in the annual financial statements are included in the 
following notes: 

Note 2 & 3:  PPE and Intangible assets useful lives estimates 
Note 11:  Provisions  

Note 28: Contingencies 

Note 27:  Lease classification 

Note 20:  Debt Impairment 

1.4    GOVERNMENT GRANT 

Grants, transfers and donations received or receivable are recognised when the resources that have been transferred meet 
the criteria for recognition as an asset. A corresponding liability is raised to the extent that the grant, transfer or donation is 
conditional. The liability is transferred to revenue as and when the conditions attached to the grant are met. Grants without 
any conditions attached are recognised as revenue when the asset is recognised.  
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1.5    PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT 

1.5.1 Recognition  and Subsequent Measurement  
An item of property, plant and equipment which qualifies for recognition as an asset has been initially be measured at cost 
less subsequent depreciation.  

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.  
Where an item of property, plant and equipment was donated, is initially recognised at its fair value as at the date of 
acquisition. 
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost shall be measured at its fair value as at date of 
acquisition. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or 
a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets was measured at its fair value.  If the acquired item could not be 
measured at its fair value, its cost was measured at the carrying amount of the asset given up.   
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised when the recognition and measurement criteria of an asset are met.  If expenditure 
only restores the originally best estimate of the expected useful life of the asset, then it is regarded as repairs and 
maintenance and is expensed. 

Incomplete construction work is stated at historical cost. Depreciation only commences when the assets is ready to be used. 

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, 
are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing 
costs capitalised in accordance with the Municipality’s accounting policy, refer to note 2. Depreciation of these assets, on the 
same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are available for their intended use.  
Subsequently property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses.  

Land is not depreciated as it is regarded as having an infinite life. 
 
1.5.2 De-recognition, Sale & Disposal 
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the proceeds of disposal and the carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Performance.  

1.5.3 Depreciation  
Depreciation is calculated on the asset’s depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over the useful life of the asset. 
The depreciable amount is determined after deducting the residual value of the asset from its cost. The depreciation charge 
is recognised as an expense unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset under construction. Assets will be 
depreciated according to their annual depreciation rates based on the following estimated useful life: 

 
Infrastructure Assets                                                                                                 Years  

Street names, signs and parking meters                                                                             5  

Water reservoirs and reticulation                             15 – 20  

 
   

 
Community Assets                                                                                                   Years  

Parks and gardens                                          10 -30  

Sport fields                                                20 – 30  

Community halls                                                                                                           30  

Recreation facilities                                                                                              20 – 30  

  

 
Other Assets                                                                                                             Years  

Motor vehicles                                                                                                               5  

Plant and equipment                                                                                                    2 – 15  
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Security measures                                                                                                  3 – 10  

Buildings                                                                                                                  30  

IT equipment                                                                                                           3 – 5  

Office equipment                                                                                                         3 – 7  

Specialised vehicles                                                                                                  10  

The residual value and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. 
If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. 
Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimates unless 
expectations differ from the previous estimate. 
 

1.6    INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Intangible assets acquired separately or internally generated are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses.  Refer to impairment of assets accounting policy 1.7 
 
Where an intangible asset has been acquired at no or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value on the date of acquisition. 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to 
which it relates.  All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands are recognised in 
the Statement of Financial Performance as incurred. 

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. 
Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the 
Municipality and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year are recognised as 
intangible assets. Costs include the employee costs incurred as a result of developing software and an appropriate portion of 
relevant overheads. 
 
1.6.1 Research and Development 

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and 
understanding, is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance when incurred. 
Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially new improved products and 
processes. 

Development expenditure is capitalised only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is 
technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the municipality intends to and has 
sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. 

The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and overhead costs that are directly attributable to 
preparing the asset for its intended use. 

Other development expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial performance as incurred. 

1.6.2 Amortisation 

Amortisation is recognised in the statement of financial performance on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 
intangible assets, other than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use.  The estimated useful lives for the current 
and comparative periods are as follows: 

Item Useful Life  

Computer software 3 Years  

Each item of intangible asset is amortised separately. 

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually.   
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The estimated useful life, the amortisation method and the residual values are reviewed annually at the end of the financial 
year.  Any adjustments arising from the annual review are applied prospectively. 

1.7    IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Impairment of Non-financial assets 

Non-Financial assets, excluding investment property and inventories, are assessed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is an indication that the carrying amount of the asset may be impaired.  If such an indication exists, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is determined.  Irrespective of whether an indication of impairment exists, the recoverable 
amount of goodwill, indefinite-life intangible assets and intangible assets not available for use are determined annually. 

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sale and its value in use.  In determining the 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows of the asset is discounted to their present value based on pre-tax discount rates 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks that are specific to the asset.  If the value 
in use of an asset for which there is an indication of impairment cannot be determined, the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.  An asset’s cash generating unit is the smallest group of identifiable 
assets that includes the asset and that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent from cash 
inflows from other assets. 

An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of financial performance when the carrying amount of an individual asset 
or of a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.  If the loss relates to the reversal of a previous revaluation 
surplus, it is recognised in equity.  Impairment losses recognised on cash-generating units are allocated on a pro rata basis, 
to the assets in the cash-generating unit. 

Impairment losses are reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of the 
asset or cash-generating unit.  Reversals of impairment losses on cash-generating units are allocated on a pro rata basis to 
the assets in the unit.  Impairment losses are reversed only to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been recognised in the past.  Reversals of impairment losses are recognised 
directly in the statement of financial performance. 

Impairment of Monetary assets 

A provision for impairment is created when there is objective evidence that the municipality will not be able to collect all 
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.  The carrying value is reduced through the use of a provision 
and is recognised as a charge to the statement of financial performance.  When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off 
against the provision.  Any subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited directly in the statement of 
financial performance.  

An available for sale financial asset is impaired when there is a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the asset 
below its cost price or amortised cost.  At such a point, a cumulative gains or losses that have been accumulated in net 
assets are removed from net assets as a reclassification adjustment and are recognised in the statement of financial 
performance.  Any subsequent impairment losses are recognised directly in the statement of financial performance. 

Where Held-to-maturity investments have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by the impairment loss and this is 
recognised as an expense in the period that the impairment is identified. 

1.8    LEASES 

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.  All other leases are 
classified as operating leases. 

Operating leases are those leases that do not fall within the scope of the above definition.  Operating lease payments are 
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease period. 
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The Municipality as Lessee 

Assets leased in terms of finance lease agreements are capitalised at amounts equal at the inception of the lease to the fair 
value of the leased property, or lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.  Capitalised leased assets are 
depreciated in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to property, plant and equipment; refer to property, plant and 
equipment policy 1.5.  The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in long-term borrowings.  
Lease finance charges are amortised to the statement of financial performance (unless they are directly attributable to 
qualifying assets) over the duration of the leases so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on their remaining balance of the 
liability. 
Obligations incurred under operating leases are charged to the statement of financial performance in equal installments over 
the period of the lease, except when an alternative method is more representative of the time pattern from which benefits are 
derived. 

1.9    FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual 
interest of another entity. 
 
The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is 
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or 
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility. 
 
A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by an entity on terms that are not market related. 
 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to 
discharge an obligation. 
 
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
foreign exchange rates. 
 
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of 
financial position. 
 
A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics: 

• Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, 
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of 
a non financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract (sometimes called the ‘underlying’). 

• It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types 
of contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors. 

• It is settled at a future date. 
 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group 
of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. 
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected 
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or 
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual 
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit 
losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part 
of the effective interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all 
other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial 
instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows 
or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows 
over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments). 
  
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties 
in an arm’s length transaction. 
 
A financial asset is: 

• cash; 
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• a residual interest of another entity; or 
• a contractual right to: 

o receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or 
o exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favorable 

to the entity. 
 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a 
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of 
a debt instrument. 
 
A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to: 

• deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or 
• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity. 

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates. 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. 
 
Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre specified terms and conditions. 
 
Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short term payables on normal credit terms. 
 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. 
 
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors 
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the 
market. 
 
A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due. 
 
A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. A 
residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as: 

• equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital; 
• a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as 

forming part of an entity’s net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution; or 
• a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the net 

assets of an entity. 
 

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset 
or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or 
disposed of the financial instrument. 
 
Financial instruments at amortised cost are non derivative financial assets or non derivative financial liabilities that have fixed 
or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that: 

• the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or 
• are held for trading. 

 
Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market, 
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. 
 
Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are: 

• derivatives;  
• combined instruments that are designated at fair value; 
• instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if: 

o it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term; or 
o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for 

which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit taking; 
o non derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at 
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fair value at initial recognition; and 
o financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial 

instruments at cost. 

 1.10    INVENTORIES 

Inventories are initially measured at cost where cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of development, 
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 
Unsold aviation fuel are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a specific identification cost basis. Fuel are 
recognized as inventory when purchased, and then charged to expense when sold. Aviation fuel are sold in line with the 
applicable tariff as promulgated. 

1.11    CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash includes cash on hand and cash with banks.   
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash with banks.  Short 
term investments are included. Bank overdrafts are recorded on the facility utilised.  Finance charges on bank overdrafts are 
expensed as incurred. 

1.12   PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Provisions are recognised when the municipality has a present or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, that is 
probable to cause an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate of the provision can be made. 

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures 
expected to be required to settle the obligation.  The discount rate used in calculating the present value is the interest rate 
implicit in the transaction. Where this is impractical to determine the average interest rate cost of borrowing rate of the 
Municipality is used. 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation, the 
provision is reversed. 
The municipality on initial adoption of the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets has 
done so retrospectively according to the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors. 

The necessary disclosures have been made for non-recognition of provisions that form part of the cost of an asset. 

1.13    EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

1.13.1 Short-term employee benefits 
The cost of short-term employee benefits, which include salaries and wages, short-term compensated absences, profit 
sharing and bonus plans, are expensed in the Statement of Financial Performance in the financial year during which the 
payment is made. 

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits that are unpaid at year-end are measured at the undiscounted amount that the 
municipality expected to pay in exchange for that service that had accumulated at the reporting date. 

1.13.2 Termination Benefits 

Termination benefits are recognised when actions have been taken that indicate that the municipality is demonstrably 
committed to either terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal retirement date; or 
provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy.  

1.13.3 Retirement benefits 
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The municipality provides retirement benefits for its employees and councilors.  

Contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees and councilors 
have rendered the employment service or served office entitling them to the contributions. 

1.13.4 Defined contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the municipality pays fixed contributions into a 
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.  Obligations for contributions to 
defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the statement of financial performance 
when they are due.  Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future 
payments is available. 

 

1.13.5 Post employment medical care benefits 
The municipality provides post-employment medical care benefits to its employees and their legitimate spouses.  The 
entitlement to post–retirement medical benefits is based on employees remaining in service up to retirement age and the 
completion of a minimum service period.   
The municipal post-employment medical care is also on the defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan 
under which the municipality pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to 
pay further amounts. 

 1.14    REVENUE RECOGNITION 

Revenue shall be measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.  Revenue is reduced for estimated 
customer returns, rebates, VAT and other similar allowances. 
 
 
 
 

1.14.1 Revenue from exchange transactions 

Rendering of services 

Flat rate service charges relating to rental of facilities and the reporting date shall be recognised when: 
• It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

municipality;  and  

• The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

Agency Services 

Income for agency services is recognised on a monthly basis once the income collected on behalf of agents has been 
quantified.   

The income recognised is in terms of the agency agreement. 

Collection charges are recognised when such amounts are incurred. 
The municipality complied with Directive 4 of February 2008, on initial adoption of the Standard of on Revenue from 
Exchange Transaction, GRAP 9, and has done so retrospectively according to the Standard of GRAP on Accounting 
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. 
 
Sale of Goods 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied: 
• The municipality has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods; 
• The municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership 

nor effective control over goods sold; 
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• The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
• It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

municipality; and 
• The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliable. 
 

1.14.2 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

Grants and donations received 
Government Grants can be in the form of grants to acquire or construct fixed assets (capital grants), grants for the 
furtherance of national and provincial government policy objectives and general grants to subsidise the cost incurred by 
municipalities rendering services.   

Capital grants and general grants for the furtherance of government policy objectives are usually restricted revenue in that 
stipulations are imposed in their use. 

Conditional grants, donations and funding were recognised as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance to the 
extent that the Municipality has complied with any criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement/arrangement.  
To the extent that the criteria, conditions and obligations have not been met a liability is raised in the Statement of Financial 
Position.  Unconditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance 
at the earlier of the date of receipt or when the amount is receivable. 
Contributed assets are recognised at fair value when the risks and rewards associated with such assets are transferred to 
the Municipality.  

  

1.14.3 Transfer revenue 
Assets and revenue recognised as a consequence of a transfer at no or nominal cost is measured at the fair value of the 
assets recognised as at the date of recognition. Non-monetary assets are measured at their fair value, which is determined 
by reference to observable market values or by independent appraisal by a member of the valuation profession. 
 
 

1.14.4 Other 

Revenue from the recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is based on legislated procedures, 
including those set out in the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003) and is recognised when the recovery 
thereof from the responsible councilors or officials is virtually certain. 

Revenue from the recovery of unauthorised irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is based on legislated procedures. 

 1.15   VALUE ADDED TAX 

The municipality accounts for Value Added Tax on the cash basis. 

1.16  UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE 
Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted, expenditure that is not in terms of the conditions of an 
allocation received from another sphere of government, municipality or organ of state and expenditure in the form of a grant 
that is not permitted in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003).   
 

Unauthorised expenditure is accounted for as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it 
is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
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1.17    IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE 

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Act (Act 56 of 2003), the Municipal Systems Act 
(Act 32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the municipality’s supply chain 
management policy.  Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure.  Irregular expenditure is accounted for as 
expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in 
the Statement of Financial Performance. 

 1.18     FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care 
been exercised.  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial 
Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

1.19    COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 

When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended, prior period comparative 
amounts are reclassified.  The nature and reason for the reclassification is disclosed. 

1.20    CONSTRUCTION OF ASSETS IN PROGRESS 
Construction of assets in progress is capital projects done on behalf of the Local Municipalities from the proceeds of 
conditional grants received and internal contributions. These projects are only handed over after full completion of the project 
and therefore all those uncompleted capital projects will be shown as Construction of assets in progress until date of transfer. 

 

1.21    RELATED PARTIES  
Related parties are identified and disclosed in terms of GRAP 20. Parties are considered to be related if one party has the 
ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating 
decisions or if the related party and another entity are subject to common control. 
Related parties include: 

• Entities that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by the reporting 
entity; 

• Associates (as per GRAP 7 - Investments in Associates); 
• Joint ventures (as per GRAP 8 - Interests in Joint Ventures) 
• Individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the reporting entity that gives them significant influence over 

the entity, and close members of the family of any such individual; 
• Management, and close members of the family of management; and 
• Entities in which a substantial ownership interest is held, directly or indirectly, by any person described in the two 

bullets above, or over which such a person is able to exercise significant influence. 
 
Each municipality and its own municipal entities are related parties. A municipality is not related to another municipality as 
they are not under common control, except where there exist a service level agreement to perform a specific function on 
behalf of the other municipality. 
 
The national government does not control provinces or municipalities for accounting purposes, although funding may be 
received from the national government. 
 
Emfuleni Local Municipality, Midvaal Local Municipality and Lesedi Local Municipality are category B municipalities which in 
terms of the Constitution of South Africa, section 155 (1) (b) means, “A Municipality that shares executive and legislative 
authority in its area with a category C municipality within whose area it falls.” Sedibeng District Municipality is performing 
agency services on behalf of the Local Municipalities. 
The Municipality does not have and associates nor any joint ventures or any other form of association that may be defined as 
related party relation. 
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1.22    HERITAGE ASSETS  
The Municipality has opted to phase in Heritage Assets over the extension period allowed based on the transitional provision 
for GRAP 103 as indicated in Directive 4. The Municipality will adjust the Heritage asset figures retrospectively with full 
implementation at 30 June 2015. 
 
1.23   BUDGET INFORMATION 
The municipality are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), 
which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar. 
General purpose financial reporting by the municipality shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and 
used in accordance with the legally adopted budget. 
The approved budget is prepared on a accrual basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance 
outcome objectives. 
The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 01 Jul 2013 to 30 Jun 2014. 
The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities approved budgets under its control. 
  
The financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the budgeted 
amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts (see note 
37) 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
      

Figures in Rand    2014  2013 as 
restated 

      
      

2. Property, plant and equipment 
       

       

  2014   2013  
       

 Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying value  Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying value  

       

Land   41,907,735   (608,655)   41,299,080   41,907,735   (608,655)   41,299,080  
Buildings   72,866,451   (13,053,074)   59,813,377   72,866,451   (10,614,666)   62,251,785  
Furniture and fixtures   16,661,339   (12,421,640)   4,239,699   15,791,176   (10,645,939)   5,145,237  
Motor vehicles   9,950,757   (7,462,700)   2,488,057   10,036,378   (6,751,467)   3,284,911  
Electronic equipment   57,476,083   (27,756,454)   29,719,629   44,101,627   (18,348,871)   25,752,756  
Infrastructure   73,086,922   (46,533,260)   26,553,662   71,814,432   (33,882,147)   37,932,285  
Other property, plant and 
equipment 

 8,803,182   (7,645,254)   1,157,928   8,634,859   (6,965,532)   1,669,327  

Specialised vehicles   699,972   (212,556)   487,416   699,972   (182,275)   517,697  
       

Total    281,452,441  (115,693,593)  165,758,848  265,852,630  (87,999,552)  177,853,078 
       

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2 014 
      

 Opening 
balance 

Additions  Disposals  Depreciation  Total  

Land  41,299,080  -  -  -  41,299,080 
Buildings  62,251,785  -  -  (2,438,408)  59,813,377 
Furniture and fixtures  5,145,237  903,134  (20,659)  (1,788,013)  4,239,699 
Motor vehicles  3,284,911  215,754  (192,716)  (819,892)  2,488,057 
Electronic equipment  25,752,756  13,538,645  (86,248)  (9,485,524)  29,719,629 
Infrastructure  37,932,285  1,272,489  -  (12,651,112)  26,553,662 
Other property, plant and equipment  1,669,327  161,523  -  (672,922)  1,157,928 
Specialised vehicles  517,697  -  -  (30,281)  487,416 
      

  177,853,078  16,091,545  (299,623)  (27,886,152)  165,758,848 
      

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2 013 
       

 Opening 
balance 

Additions  Disposals  Depreciation  Impairment 
reversal 

Total  

Land  41,299,080  -  -  -  -  41,299,080 
Buildings  64,689,775  -  -  (2,438,192)  202  62,251,785 
Furniture and fixtures  3,897,567  566,299  (41,103)  (1,347,288)  2,069,762  5,145,237 
Motor vehicles  4,380,594  688728  (85,893)  (1,698,518)  -  3,284,911 
Electronic equipment  20,410,228  12,193,860  (117,362)  (7,137,000)  403,030  25,752,756 
Infrastructure  45,928,258  17,820  -  (11,713,504)  3,699,711  37,932,285 
Other property, plant and 
equipment 

 3,080,307  44,781  (1,400)  (1,511,960)  57,599  1,669,327 

Specialised vehicles  547,976  -  -  (30,279)  -  517,697 
       

  184,233,785  13,511,488  (245,758)  (25,876,741)  6,230,304  177,853,078 
       

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for inspection 
at the registered office of the municipality. 
Inclusive in Motor Vehicles is a lease vehicle at a book value of R 267,839 as at 30 June 2014 (R 497,414 as at 30 June 2013).
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3. Intangible assets 
       

       

  2014   2013  
       

 Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
amortisation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying value  Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
amortisation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying value  

       

Computer software, other   5,994,573   (4,520,143)   1,474,430   4,840,890   (3,853,784)   987,106  
       

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2014 
     

 Opening 
balance 

Additions  Amortisation  Total  

Computer software, other  987,106  1,153,683  (666,359)  1,474,430 
     

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2013 
      

 Opening 
balance 

Additions  Amortisation  Impairment 
reversal 

Total  

Computer software, other  1,923,053  452,319  (1,414,163)  25,897  987,106 
      

4. Heritage assets 
       

Transitional provisions 

Due to initial adoption of GRAP 103 

Steps taken to establish the values of heritage asset recognised at provisional amounts due to the initial adoption of GRAP 103, 
is as follows: 

The Municipality meets with the Provincial Treasury Department in order to address the Heritage assets currently at the Vaal 
Technorama Museum in order to determine the methodology to be used for valuation.  

The date at which full compliance with GRAP 103 is expected, is Tuesday, 30 June, 2015. 

5. Construction of Assets in Progress 

 
Sharpeville Police Station   561,118 457,226
Sports field Lesedi   5,283,126 609,772
Sebokeng Cultural Precinct   4,361,964 634,723
      

     10,206,208   1,701,721 
 

6. Inventories 
      

Fuel - Airport     382,653   220,090 
The necessary disclosures have been made for inventories in accordance with GRAP 12. AVGAS and JET A1 fuel are held at 
the Vereeniging Aerodrome for sale   
      

7. Receivables from exchange transactions 
      

Trade debtors     888,170   1,110,139 
Employee costs in advance     127,586   123,734 
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VAT on Accruals      1,505,401   1,311,101 
SETA Refund     1,392,852   1,054,089 
Recoverable fruitless and wasteful expenditure     198,985   57,750 
Bank Error     17,342   - 
Local Municipalities - Agency services     3,765,080   5,674,300 
Lotto Sport Bridging Finance     283,180   - 
MSIG Bridging Finance     -   18,772 
      

     8,178,596   9,349,885 
      
      
Trade debtors       
Current (0 – 30 days)   738,265 1,102,234
31 – 60 days   - -
61 – 90 days   - -
>91   149,,905 7,905
Less: Provision for Debt Impairment   - -
Total Trade Debtors    888,170 1,110,139
   
Employee Cost in Advance    
Current (0 – 30 days)   127,586 123,734
   
Pre-payments    
Current (0 – 30 days)    -   - 
   
VAT on Accruals    
Current (0 – 30 days)    1,505,401   1,311,101 
   
   
SETA Refunds    
Current(0-30 days)   338,762 344,647
>120 days   1,054,089 709,442
Total SETA Refunds    1,392,851 1,054,089
   
Recoverable fruitless and wasteful expenditure    
Current (0 – 30 days)   198,985 57,750
   
Bank Error    

Current (0 – 30 days)   17,342
   
Local Municipalit ies  Agency services    
Current (0 – 30 days)   678310 791,450
31 – 60 days   550,717 560,900
61 – 90 days   521,185 474,168
91 – 120  days   540,552 431,966
>120 days   953,131 3,415,816
Total Local Municipalit ies Agency services    3,765,080 5,674,300
   
   
Paving Sidewalk (SANRAL)    
>365 days   1,007,843 1,007,843
Less: Provision for Debt Impairment   -1,007,843 -1,007,843
Total -Paving Sidewalk (SANRAL)    - -
   
Lotto Greening Project    
>365 days   1,004,283 1,004,283
Less: Provision for Debt Impairment   -1,004,283 -1,004,283
Total Lotto Greening Project    - -
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Lotto Sport  Bridging Finance    
Current (0 – 30 days)   283,180 -
   
Insurance Claim    
Current (0 – 30 days)   - 383,482
   
MSIG Bridging Finance    
Current (0 – 30 days)   - 18,772
     
      

8. VAT  
RR      

VAT - Receivable    -    18,016  
VAT - Payable   900,504  - 
The Municipality is registered on the cash basis and the amount reflected relates to the normal monthly submission of the 
VAT201 return whereby the last return of the financial year is applicable. 
      

9. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 
      

Cash on hand    42,325    40,325  
Cash book balances    14,706,973    5,967,964  
Investment deposits    226,454    907,540  
      

    14,975,752    6,915,829  
      

The municipality had the following bank accounts 
Account number / description   Bank statement balances  Cash book balances  
 30 June, 2014  30 June, 2013  30 June, 201 2 30 June, 2014  30 June, 201 3 30 June, 201 2 
ABSA BANK  - Primary Bank 
Account 

 1,243,172  1,981,957  3,007,702  1,198,396  1,952,861  2,707,511  

ABSA BANK  - License function 
Bank Account 

 6,188,257  3,425,210  9,184,364  6,188,257  4,015,103  9,711,142 
  

Standard Bank – New Primary 
Bank Account 

1,230,793   1,230,793   

Standard Bank – License 
function Bank Account 

6,089,527   6,089,527   

       

Total    14,751,749  5,407,167  12,192,066  14,706,973  5,967,964  12,418,653  
       
 

 
The Municipality had the following short term inves tment deposits at year end:  
ABSA Call Account – 9085796427     226,454   907,540 

 

10. Unspent conditional grants and receipts 

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises o f: 
      

Unspent conditional grants and receipts       
Provincial Grants    1,197,243    7,416,439  
National Grants    12,189,697    991,449  
DPLG Grants    1,280,579    1,416,790  
      

    14,667,519    9,824,678  
      

Movement during the year 
      

Balance at the beginning of the year    9,824,678    12,793,066  
Additions during the year    28,119,530    12,434,800  
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Income recognition during the year    (21,291,689)    (15,403,188)  
Grant Reversal / Forfeit    (1,985,000)    -  
      

    14,667,519    9,824,678  
      

The nature and extent of government grants recognised in the financial statements and an indication of other forms of 
government assistance from which the municipality has directly benefited; and 

Unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to government assistance that has been recognised. 

See note 15 for reconciliation of grants from National/Provincial Government. 

11. Provisions 

Reconciliation of provisions – 2014 
    

 Opening 
Balance 

Utilised 
during the 

year 

Total  

Performance Bonus  1,926,700  (681,671)  1,245,029 
    

Reconciliation of provisions – 2013 
   

 Opening 
Balance 

Total  

Performance Bonus  1,926,700  1,926,700 
   

12. Payables from exchange transactions 
      

Trade payables     8,314,450   4,251,623 
Accrued leave pay     14,901,272   15,959,613 
Department of Transport (Licence fees)     29,621,195   15,771,644 
Local Municipalities Accounts     8,496,289   7,961,776 
SALA Pension fund     2,667,996   2,210,092 
Retention on Capital Projects     1,188,888   97,852 
Insurance Claims     134,673   - 
Mayoral Events     113,800   104,300 
Ambulance fees in advance     84,445   85,187 
Refundable town hall rental deposits     133,482   112,984 
Unclaimed Salaries     36,632   36,311 
Salaries in arrears     29,991   10,687 
Unknown deposits     254,737   228,421 
Deferred Asset Transfer to Locals     10,206,208   1,701,721 
VAT on Debtors     354,697   604,622 
      

     76,538,755   49,136,833 
      

13. Revenue 
      

Sale of goods     3,661,592   1,394,760 
Rental of facilities and equipment     8,928,134   7,926,622 
Income from agency services     6,553,216   7,246,453 
Licences and permits     58,520,058   62,151,875 
Other income     1,101,699   887,712 
Interest received – investment     1,607,476   2,115,595 
Government grants & subsidies     254,076,689   259,626,688 
      

     334,448,864   341,349,705 
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The amount included in revenue arising from exchang es of goods or 
services are as follows:  

     

Sale of goods     3,661,592   1,394,760 
Rental of facilities and equipment     8,928,134   7,926,622 
Income from agency services     6,553,216   7,246,453 
Licences and permits     58,520,058   62,151,875 
Other income      1,101,699   887,712 
Interest received – investment     1,607,476   2,115,595 
      

     80,372,175   81,723,017 
      

      

The amount included in revenue arising from non -exchange transactions is as follows:   
Transfer revenue        
Government grants & subsidies     254,076,689   259,626,688 
      

14. Cost of sales 
      

Sale of goods       
Cost of goods sold    3,233,650   1,403,544 
Aviation fuel (JET A1 and AVGAS) are sold at the Vereeniging Aerodrome. The amount is not shown separately but shown as 
part of note 17.  
      

15. Government grants and subsidies 
Equitable share    232,785,000   226,009,000 
Ambulance subsidy    -   18,214,500 
Support Grants    21,291,689   15,403,188 
      

    254,076,689   259,626,688 
      

Equitable Share 
      

Current-year receipts    (232,785,000)   (226,009,000) 
Conditions met – transferred to revenue    232,785,000   226,009,000 
      

    -   - 
      

Conditions still to be met – remain liabilities (see note 10). 

Emergency Medical Services 
      

Current-year receipts     -   (18,214,500) 
Conditions met – transferred to revenue     -   18,214,500 
      

     -   - 
      

Conditions still to be met – remain liabilities (see note 10). 

Emergency Medical Services has been transferred to the Provincial Health Department I August 2013 and therefore the District 
Municipality will not receive this subsidy in future. 

Provincial Grants 
      

Balance unspent at beginning of year    7,416,439   9,723,103 
Current-year receipts    9,774,530   7,108,000 
Conditions met – transferred to revenue    (14,988,626)   (9,414,664) 
Grant Reversal    (1,005,100)   - 
      

    1,197,243   7,416,439 
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Reconciliation of Unspent Conditional Grants 

 

Opening 
Balance 

July 2013 

Grants Received 
2013/14 

Grants Spent 
2013/14 

Unspent 
Grants  June 

2014 

LED Project 1,700,000  (1,418.253) 281,747  

HIV/AIDS 1,631,839  6,372,000  (7,936,269) 67,571  

Impl Tourism Inst Framework 300,000  52,530 (47,332)  305,198  

Establishment of Shared Services - 350,000 - 350,000 

LOTTO – Sport 2,390,228  2,000,000 (4,390,228) - 

EPWP Grant 1,005,240 (5,100) (1,000,140) - 

Craft Hub Establishment 350,404 - (196,405) 153,999 

Tourism Birding Route 38,728  - - 38,728  

 
7,416,438 8,769,430  (14,988,626) 1,197,243  

Conditions still to be met – remain liabilities (see note 10). 

National Grants 
      

Balance unspent at beginning of year    991,449   1,362,476 
Current-year receipts    18,345,000   5,258,000 
Conditions met – transferred to revenue    (6,166,852)   (5,629,027) 
Grant Reversal    (979,900)   - 
      

    12,189,697   991,449 
      

Reconciliation of Unspent Conditional Grants 
Opening 
Balance July 
2013 

Grants Received 
2013/14 

Grants Spent 
2013/14 

Unspent 
Grants  June 
2014 

Urban Environmental Management Program 
(DANIDA) 10,615 - 10,615 

Municipal Improvement Systems Grant 0 890,000 (703,310) 186,690 

Municipal Finance Management Grant 904 1,250,000 (1,250,904) - 

NDPG Project 979,930 15,225,100 (4,212,638) 11,992,392 

 
991,449 17,365,100 (6,166,852) 12,189,697 

 

Conditions still to be met – remain liabilities (see note 10). 

DLG Grants 
      

Balance unspent at beginning of year     1,416,790   1,707,487 
Current-year receipts     -   68,800 
Conditions met – transferred to revenue     (136,211)   (359,497) 
      

     1,280,579   1,416,790 
      

Reconciliation of Unspent Conditional Grants 

Opening 
Balance July 
2012 

Grants Received 
2012/13 

Grants Spent 
2012/13 

Unspent 
Grants  June 
2013 

Sharpeville Public Library 598,617  (131,211)  462,406  



Sedibeng District Municipality 
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June, 2014 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
      

Figures in Rand    2014  2013 as 
restated 

      

 

30 
 

Environmental 121,474  - 121,474  

Construction Of Tea-Tea Road 627,899  -  627,899  

Tourism Awards 68,800  - 68,800 

 
1,416,790  

 
(131,211)  1,280,579  

Conditions still to be met – remain liabilities (see note 10). 

Changes in level of government grants 

Based on the allocations set out in the Division of Revenue Act, no significant changes in the level of government grant funding 
are expected over the forthcoming 3 financial years. 

16. Other income 
      

Ad-hoc Income     279,421   71,635 
Skills Levy Income     338,762   344,647 
Ambulance fees     -   48,961 
Tender Income     167,170   117,440 
Commission on Salaries     166,117   165,994 
Telephone Cost recovered     150,229   139,035 
      

     1,101,699   887,712 
      

17. General expenses 
      

Advertising     641,358   765,933 
Assessment rates & municipal charges     1,538,177   6,589,891 
Auditors remuneration     2,158,221   2,050,167 
Bank charges     1,052,485   750,810 
Computer expenses     1,348,291   1,255,425 
Consulting and professional fees     5,931,535   2,598,399 
Consumables     895,661   875,689 
Entertainment     517,013   397,901 
Insurance     1,962,719   1,263,061 
Lease rentals on operating lease     6,515,033   5,913,984 
Magazines, books and periodicals     227,937   195,441 
Fuel and oil     1,549,041   1,324,335 
Postage and courier     2,097   15,593 
Printing and stationery     2,049,085   2,271,171 
Promotions     999,699   1,142,607 
Protective clothing     221,068   322,764 
Royalties and license fees     4,176,777   3,796,827 
Staff welfare     283,953   257,496 
Subscriptions and membership fees     1,880,297   1,601,248 
Telephone and fax     3,620,806   3,523,528 
Training     3,032,427   999,003 
Subsistence & Travel      2,026,061   2,222,913 
Office refreshments     412,962   321,052 
Workshops     10,263,352   9,747,340 
Congresses & Meetings     430,441   357,214 
Expenses from Grants     11,589,672   9,074,502 
External Bursaries     696,305   468,756 
Donations & Grants     299,173   309,569 
Catering Expenses     846,341   1,179,274 
Sale of goods – Aircraft fuel     3,233,650   1,403,544 
      

     70,401,637   62,995,437 
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18. Employee / Personnel related costs 
      

Employee related cost exclusive of Section 57 employees     125,179,249   123,735,027 
Medical aid – company contributions     11,093,322   10,656,043 
UIF     989,810   1,025,528 
WCA     1,432,761   1,144,257 
SDL     1,693,812   1,723,235 
Other payroll levies     2,228,041   2,233,037 
Leave pay provision charge     1,232,916   3,842,059 
Pension Fund contributions     25,368,507   24,938,360 
Overtime payments     4,381,730   3,625,731 
13th Cheques Bonus     9,289,000   12,211,064 
Car allowance     9,509,723   8,844,498 
Housing benefits and allowances     868,303   995,969 
Telephone Allowances     505   503 
Standby Allowance     562,849   715,667 
      

     193,830,528   195,690,978 
      

Remuneration of municipal manager 
      

Annual Remuneration     1,129,529   1,056,774 
Car Allowance     119,784   119,784 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds     103,391   96,010 
Leave Days     61,001   - 
      

     1,413,705   1,272,568 
      

Remuneration of Chief Finance Officer 
      

Annual Remuneration    724,917   674,324 
Car Allowance     144,000   144,000 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds     197,364   184,512 
Housing Allowance     4,800   4,800 
      

     1,071,081   1,007,636 
      

Remuneration of Executive Directors 
      

Annual Remuneration     2,587,695   3,241,673 
Car Allowance     364,000   474,000 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds     333,523   314,870 
Housing Allowance     12,000   - 
      

     3,297,218   4,030,543 
The position for the Executive Director SPED is vacant since August 2013      
      

Remuneration of Chief Operations Officer 
      

Annual Remuneration     1,138,479   1,071,006 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds     55,511   52,254 
      

     1,193,990   1,123,260 
      
Total personnel Cost    200,806,522 203,124,985
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19. Remuneration of councillors 
      

Executive Major     754,914   738,739 
Mayoral Committee Members     4,854,411   4,663,979 
Speaker     614,786   608,942 
Councillors      3,194,868   3,263,909 
Councillors’ pension contribution     913,670   891,932 
Telephone Allowance     376,507   116,542 
      

     10,709,156   10,284,043 
      

In-kind benefits 

The Executive Mayor, Deputy Executive Mayor, Speaker and Mayoral Committee Members are full-time. Each is provided with 
an office and secretarial support at the cost of the Council. 

The Executive Mayor has use of a Council owned vehicle for official duties. 

The Executive Mayor and Speaker have full-time bodyguards 

20. Debt impairment 
      

Debt impairment     66,567   125,855 
      

21. Investment revenue 
      

Interest revenue        
Bank     1,607,476   2,115,595  
      

22. Depreciation and amortisation 
      

Property, plant and equipment     27,352,369   25,293,778 
Intangible assets     666,359   1,414,163 
      

Sub-Total      28,018,728   26,707,941 
Offset depreciation against Government grant reserve   533,781 582,964
     28,552,509   27,290,905 
      

23. Auditors' remuneration 
      

Fees     2,158,221   2,050,167 
      

24. Contracted services 
      

Specialist Services     15,945,521   13,908,492 
Other Contractors     20,872,713   27,790,412 
      

     36,818,234   41,698,904 
      

25. Grants and subsidies paid 
      

Other subsidies        
Grants paid to Local Municipalities     11,145,127   5,038,185  
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26. Cash generated from operations 
      

Deficit     (28,014,398)   (13,773,949) 
Adjustments for:        
Depreciation and amortisation     27,789,152   26,707,941 
Loss / (Gain) on sale of assets and liabilities     134,381   163,960 
Finance cost – Finance leases   38,340 47,186
Debt impairment     66,567   125,855 
Movements in provisions     (681,671)   - 
Asset Movement on GGR     240,782   (15,457) 
Changes in working capital:        
Inventories     (162,563)   87,432 
Receivables from exchange transactions     1,171,289   (3,589,432) 
Debt impairment     (66,567)   (125,855) 
Construction of assets in progress     (8,504,487)   30,349,961 
Payables from exchange transactions     27,401,926   (33,442,359) 
VAT     918,520   4,270,035 
Unspent conditional grants and receipts     4,842,841   (2,968,388) 
      

    25,403,689   7,836,930 
      

27. Commitments 

27.1 Authorized capital and operating expenditure 
       

Unspent conditional grants and receipts         
Provincial Grants     1,197,243   7,416,439  
National Grants     12,189,697   991,449  
DLG Grants     1,280,579   1,416,790  
     14,667,519   9,824,678  

The current unspent conditional grants are all committed funds which still need to be utilized in order to meet the conditions as 
stipulated in the various government gazettes. 
 

Capital commitments arising as a result of contract ual obligation : 
Fibre Optic Project 962,030 15,088,260 

27.2 Operating leases - as lessee (expense) 
      

Minimum lease payments due       
 - within one year    4,722,826   5,465,248 
      

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the municipality for certain of its office properties. No contingent rent is 
payable. 

 

28. Contingencies 

The Municipality may be liable for claims instituted against the Municipality by employees who have disputes against the 
Municipality. The amount is uncertain as an arbitration award has not yet being issued against those claims. 

There is currently a dispute between Sedibeng District Municipality and the Gauteng Department of Transport relating to the 
treatment of VAT on agency services. Council may be liable for an amount of R 49,539,502 however two legal opinions were 
obtained and a SARS ruling is still awaited. 
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Contingencies arising from pending litigation on wage curve agreement - On 21 April 2010 SALGA signed the “Categorisation 
and job evaluation wage curves collective agreement” (wage curve agreement) with IMATU and SAMWU on behalf of 
municipalities. The agreement established the wage curves and wage scales to be used by municipalities in determining the 
wages of municipal employees, based on an evaluation of employees’ jobs per the TASK job evaluation system. Subsequent to 
the signing of the agreement, the unions declared a dispute with the agreement. The dispute was referred to the Labour Court 
and the court delivered a ruling on 22 June 2012 that employees receive a salary increase backdated with effect from 1 July 
2010 instead of 1 July 2011. SALGA, on behalf of municipalities, applied for leave to appeal this ruling and was granted the 
right to appeal against the judgement on 29 August 2012. To date this Labour Court of Appeal case has not been finalised. As 
a result of the uncertainties arising from the dispute declared by the unions and the pending litigation regarding the wage curve 
agreement, the municipality may have an additional receivable/ payable for employee wages, depending on the outcome of the 
pending litigation. It is not practicable to reliably estimate the amount of this receivable/ payable prior to the outcome of the 
pending litigation. The wage curve agreement have not yet been implemented at the Sedibeng District Municipality as job 
evaluations have not yet been done and therefore it is  consequently impracticable to reliably measure the obligation that might 
exist as a result of the wage curve agreement.  

Contingent assets   

Emergency Medical Services has been transferred to the Department of Health whereby unfunded expenditure related to the 
previous year’s might be recoverable which amounts to R 38,5Million. 

A change in legislation regarding the treatment of UIF payments relating to Councilors resulted in a possible refund to Council 
which amounts to R 83,823 for the period. SARS is currently busy in finalizing the claim. 

29. Prior period errors 

SALA Pension fund has been awarded a judgment.in their favor relating to a claim on the increase of pension rates payable by 
Municipalities. Sedibeng District Municipality must pay an amount of R 2,667,995.58. No creditor has been created in the prior 
year. The amount is split between the 2012/13 (R 392,185) financial year and the prior periods (R 1,817,907). This has an 
impact on the pension contribution which was re-stated in the statement of financial performance. 

Creditors under provided consist of training fees payable for the previous year which amounts to R 15,054 and the SALA 
pension fees payable of R 392,185. 

Creditors over provided consist of retention money not payable to the amount of R 183,461 (grants and subsidies paid) 

Debtors over provided consist of insurance claim which did not realized to the amount of R 383,483 (contracted services) and 
Midvaal Local Municipality at an amount of R 27,407 (subsistence & travel) 

A financial lease liability was previously shown as a operating lease and the correction resulted in an additional amount of 
R18,683. The lease vehicle has been added as an asset to the value of R497,414 as at 30 June 2013 with a lease obligation of 
R516,098. 
The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments are as follow: 
 

Statement of changes in net assets 
 Opening Balance 1 July 2012 145,575,494 

SALA creditor not provided  -1,817,907 

Restated Closing balance 1 July 2012 143,757,587 

  Surplus (Deficit) for the year 2013 -13,120,598 

Creditors under provided -407,239 

Creditor over provided 183,461 

Debtor over provided -410,890 

Financial Lease Liability -18,683 

Restated Surplus (deficit) for the year 2013 -13,773,949 
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30. Risk management 

Financial risk management 

Liquidity risk 

The municipality’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The municipality manages 
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. 

Interest rate risk 

Credit risk 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade receivables. The 
municipality only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. 
Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing 
basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control 
assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual 
risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is 
regularly monitored. Sales to retail customers are settled in cash or using major credit cards. Credit guarantee insurance is 
purchased when deemed appropriate 

Categories of Financial Instruments 

Financial Assets 

     

Cash and cash equivalents    14,975,752    6,915,829
Inventories    382,653    220,090 
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions    8,178,596    9,349,885
VAT Receivable   - 18,016
Construction of Assets in progress    10,206,208    1,701,721
    33,743,209 18,205,541

Financial Liabilities      
Unspent conditional grants and receipts    14,667,519   9,824,678
Provisions    1,245,029   1,926,700
VAT Payable   900,504
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions    76,538,757   49,136,832
Total Liabilities     93,351,809   60,888,210

If the interest rates received on investments incre ase or decrease by 100 basis points, the effect on the Statement of 
Financial performance would be as follows: 

 
 

2014 2013 

Floating Rate Financial Assets  Rate % Effect on 
Surplus 

Rat
e % 

Effect on 
Surplus 

Cash and cash equivalents 1%  149,757 1%  6,915 
Construction of Assets in progress 1%  102,062  1%  170,17  
Inventories 1%  3,826 1%  2,200 
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 1%  81,785  1%  93,498 
Floating Rate Financial Liabilities      
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 1%  (102,062) 1%  (98,246)  
Provisions 1%  (12,450) 1%  (19,267)  
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 1%  (765,387)  1%  (491,368)  

 

31. Going concern 

We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June, 2014, the municipality had accumulated surplus of R 107,334,021 and that the 
municipality's total assets exceed its liabilities by R 107,334,021. 
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The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis 
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

As a District Municipality based on our powers and functions we are completely grant dependent. No other main revenue 
source is obtainable. Over the last 5 years, as a result of the global financial economy constraints, National Treasury 
downscaled and implemented austerity measures which resulted in the reduction of our main source of revenue, the 
Equitable share. It is as a result of the global financial constraint that the equitable share over the last 5 years were reduced 
far lessor than the CPI for each financial period. In addition salary increases for the South African Local Bargaining Council 
was implementing salary increases more than the equitable share growth allocated to municipalities over the last 5 years –
UNCONTROLABLE to municipalities. The reduction has been reported to National Treasury as our revenue source 
diminished. It was based on this reason that the District Municipality implemented austerity measures over the last 4 years 
which is still in place (HR dashboard- attrition, leave management, etc and Financial snapshot position of municipality 
performed monthly. The municipality performs daily, weekly and monthly cash flow reconciliations with projections to ensure 
that we are able to meet our obligations based on the grants received. The grants has been ring-fenced and are adequately 
apportioned for its main purpose. The municipality adopted a pro-poor budgeting approach and followed National Treasury 
budget guide as a principle for provision on depreciation and employee cost. 

We draw further attention to the fact that at 30 June, 2014, the municipality's current liabilities exceed its current assets with 
R59,855,797. In addition the anticipated unfunded mandate of R38,5 million for Emergency Medical services rendered to the 
Provincial Department of Health is still owed to Sedibeng District Municipality which is currently been shown as a contingent
asset. Negotiations which ensued was to settle the amount of R25million in good faith to ensure that 19,25 million would be 
paid during the audit period under review and the balance payable in the 2014/15 financial year.  
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32. Events after the reporting date  

It has been identified that land is incorrectly registered at the Deeds Office in the name of Sedibeng District Municipality. 
These properties need to be transferred to their rightful owner, Emfuleni Local Municipality. 

33. Unauthorised and Irregular expenditure 

33.1 Unauthorised expenditure   

None incurred in reporting period 

33.2 Irregular expenditure  
 
Declarations of interests were not submitted by the following suppliers to confirm that they are in service of state prior to conducting 
business with the municipality 

No. Supplier Name 
ID nr of 
Employee 

Name of 
Employee 

Surname of 
Employee 

Membership 
status 

Expenditure  
(current 
year) 

1a 

MAROPENG 
A'AFRIKA 
LEISURE 
(PTY)LTD 

5704210831089 
PATRICIA 
ELIZABETH 

HANEKOM Director        1 740.00  

1b 

MAROPENG 
A'AFRIKA 
LEISURE 
(PTY)LTD 

5806110181083 
DAWN 
ELIZABETH 

ROBERTSO
N 

Director   

2 
SHARPETOWN 
SWINGSTERS 
JAZZ BAND 

6706085337083 
MOGOBOSHA
NE ELIAS 

ACHUSE Member        5 000.00  

3 
NEW WAVE 
NETCALL 
COLLECTIONS 

6908140289081 
SINDISIWE 
NTOMBENHLE 

MABASO 
KOYANA 

Director      32 586.00  

4 
LORD'S 
SIGNATURE 
HOTEL 

7303100689083 
MAAININI 
ANNETTE 

MAHLOKO Member     167 936.50  

5 
MELTWATER 
SOUTH AFRICA 
(PTY)LTD 

8311170000000 SAMUEL CURTIN Director       30 000.01  

          Total value  237 262.51  
 

34. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Possible fruitless and Wasteful expenditure are investigated and where applicable recovered from the Employee / Councillor 
concern. An amount of R 198,985 is currently being recovered from employees related to traffic fines and training cost. See 
annual report for details on all recoveries during the year. 
 

35. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Fin ance Management Act 

35.1 PAYE and UIF & Skills levy 
      

Current year subscription / fee    31,631,204   31,911,256 
Amount paid - current year    (31,631,204)   (31,911,256) 
      

    -   - 
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35.2 Pension and Medical Aid Deductions 
      

Current year subscription / fee    54,494,518   53,298,963 
Amount paid - current year    (54,494,518)   (53,298,963) 
      

    -   - 
      

35.3 VAT 
      

VAT receivable    -   18,016 
VAT payable    900,504   - 
      

    900,504   18,016 
      

All VAT returns have been submitted by the due date throughout the year. 

35.4 Deviation from supply chain management regulat ions 

In terms of section 36 of the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations any deviation from the Supply Chain 
Management Policy needs to be approved/condoned by the Municipal Manager and noted by Council. The expenses incurred 
as listed hereunder have been condoned.  

Paragraph 12(1)(d)(i) of Government gazette No. 27636 issued on 30 May 2005 states that a supply chain management policy 
must provide for the procurement of goods and services by way of a competitive bidding process. 

Paragraph 36 of the same gazette states that the accounting officer may dispense with the official procurement process in 
certain circumstances, provided that he records the reasons for any deviations and reports them to the next meeting of the 
accounting officer and includes a note to the financial statements. 



Sedibeng District Municipality 
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June, 2014 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
      

Figures in Rand    2014  2013 as 
restated 

      
      

 

39 
 

(a)

Any exceptional cases where
it is impractical or impossible
to follow the official procurement
processes

KHWELLELE TRADING AND 
PROJECT (PTY) LYD

6-Jul-13

Three quotes were sourced from the 
supplier database,it was an urgent request 

for Corporate Gifts from the Tourism 
Department

COO
Strategic Planning 

Environmental 
Development

R 48,250.00

KAPELEPELE LOGISTICS CC 16-Sep-13
It was urgent request of transport services 

for employees to attend the Funeral in 
Dutywa, Eastern Cape.

COO
CORPORATE 

SERVICE
R 43,776.00

TSATSI CONSULTANTS CC 10-Oct-13
Transport for stakeholders to attend the 

funeral in Lesotho. (62 delegates).
   MM

OFFICE OF THE 
CHIEF WHIP

R 58,900.00

Corpclo 117 CC 29-Nov-13
Security Advisory Services for the 

Commemoration of the Nangalembe Night 
Vigil

MM
Community 

Service
R 75,240.00

TSATSI CONSULTANTS CC 12-Dec-13 It was urgent request of transport to ferry 
stakeholders to the union building 

CFO
OFFICE OF THE 

CHIEF WHIP
R 45,000.00

M AND H PUMPS AND METER 
SERVICES

12-Dec-13 The leaking of AVGAS hose is very 
dangerous, any spark be it fire or lightning 

can ignite the fuel and cause damage

MM
CORPORATE 

SERVICES
R 33,630.00

MOIMA & ASSOCIATES INC 13-Dec-13

Legal charges for special case on various 
confidential matters

MM
CORPORATE 

SERVICES
R 543,577.00

ATLANTA OUTFITTERS CC T/A 
FIGO

23-Dec-13

Only one supplier registered on the database 
was recognised to render the service of 

delivery of VIP Protection Officers uniforms 
to avoid delays and labour dispute over 

condition of service.

MM
Community 

Service
R 130,000.00

TSHAHANNES AND MAMOHAU 
TRADING AND TRANSPORT

3-Dec-13
The first service provider could not deliver 

and the SCM process was followed for 
Mandela Memorial Service

CFO
OFFICE OF THE 

SPEAKER
R 49,509.00

THE SHAKESPEARE INN 10-Feb-14 Executive Mayor meetings conducted with 
various stakeholders

MM
OFFICE OF THE 

EXECUTIVE 
MAYOR

R 40,105.90

TL APPLIANCES AND 
LAWNMOWERS

4-Mar-14

The formal procurement process was not 
followed, but it is impractical  to source 
three quotations because it is repairs and 

maintenance of Machines

CFO Corporate Service R 30,000.00

BONGANI MAKHUNGA 
TRADING ENTERPRISES CC

4-Mar-14
It was an urgent procurement for unblocked 

toilets
CFO Corporate Service R 7,520.74

POLYCOMP (PTY) LTD 14-Mar-14

The formal procurement process was 
followed, it is impractical  to source three 

quotations becouse it is repairs and 
maintenance of Machines

CFO
Transport 

Infastructure and 
Environment 

R 31,036.50

M & H PUMP SERVICES 13-Mar-14

The emergency occurred after hours 
whereby the the truck from shell was 

offloading the AVGAS. Due to the sudden 
loss of preassure from our tanks, there was a 
need to replace the filter that was blocked 

during the offloading.

MM Corporate Service R 4,001.40

EMERALD CASINO RESORT 18-Mar-14

March 21 Human rights day function. 
Emerald was identified as the only venue to 
render the service for the specified no. of 

delegates

MM
OFFICE OF THE 

SPEAKER
R 400,000.00

IT'S INK PRINTER 7-Apr-14
Our Internal machines broke & cartridges 
were out of stock, Overnight print work  

was needed.
MM

Municipal 
Manager

R 29,001.60

M & H PUMP SERVICES 26-Jun-14
Replacing a faulty meter at Vereeniging 

Aerodrome which hampered the rendering 
of services to its clients

MM Corporate Services R 9,741.30

TRADEX INTERNATIONAL CC 16-Jun-14

There is an urgent need to supply uniforms 
to employees at the Taxi Ranks due to the 

transfer of employees from the service 
provider

COO Corporate Services R 72,887.07

R 1,652,176.51

AMOUNT

R 48,250.00
R 745,133.51
R 103,900.00

Community Services R 205,240.00
Office of the Speaker R 449,509.00
Office of the Speaker R 40,105.90
Transport Infastructure and Environment R 31,036.50
Office of the Municipal Manager R 29,001.60

R 1,652,176.51

Sundry processes followed related to services 
rendered

A purchase order was made out to the supplier 
registered on the database.

Contract in place and sundry payment process 
followed

Normal SCM Processes
were followed, but the 1st service provide 
could not deliver.

Office of the Chief Whip
Corporate Services

CLUSTER / DEPARTMENT

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURE INCURRED THROUGH 
DEVIATION 2013/2014 FINANCIAL YEAR

Total Expenditure incurred through deviations

Urgent request. 
Supplier listed in the database.

Impractical to source three quotes as it was 
urgent to print the IDP documents. The Internal 
printing machines could not print

Normal SCM Processes
should have been followed, if there was proper 

Urgent request. 
Supplier listed in the database.

Sourced a quote from the available supplier

The department should develop specs to have a 
contract in place to avoid further deviations

Three quotes were sourced from the supplier 
database

Sourced a quote from the available supplier - 
sole supplier in area based on requirements to 
host function

A formal written quatation process could not be 
follwed. Due to the urgency of the request

It was urgent request for a Funeral at Dutywa 
(Eastern Cape)

Three quotes were sourced from the supplier 
database

The formal written quotations process was not 
followed, as the quantity of items was increased 
after the order was issued

Applicable paragraph in SCM Policy Name of Supplier
Date of

the order
Reason for deviation Approved by: Cluster Amount SCM COMMENTS

A formal written quatation process should have 
been followed.

The Municipality should enter into a contract 
with the service providers to repair and 
maintain pipes/pump on as and when required 
basis to avoid recurrence of deviations in this 
regard

Total Expenditure incurred through deviations

Strategic Planning Environmental Development

LIST OF DEVIATIONS RECORDED FOR THE 2013/2014 FINANCIAL YEAR
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35.5 Declaration of business conducted to close fam ily members of persons in the service of the state 
The below table list the awards to close family members of persons in the service of the state and awards to persons in the 
service of the state.  

 
1. Awards to close family members of persons in the  service of the state 

 
Company Name Initials Surname Designation and 

Employee NO. 
Relationship with the 
company 

Amount Paid 
 

Panorama Bloemiste 
CC 

CS Heunes Senior Accountant 
Expenditure 
17530 

Spouse to the 
Director/Shareholder 

R 5,000.00 

 
2. Awards to persons in the service of the state 

 
Company Name ID NO. Initials & Surname  Current Employer Amount Paid 

2013/14 
None     

 
35.6 Television sets in terms of the Television License Regulations under the Broadcasting act no 4 of 1999 , as 

amended  
 Description  Number of sets  Period that sets were in entity’s possession   
 Owned television sets 54 54 sets were used for the full year;  
 Rented or leased television sets -   
 Number of sets donated/ alienated -   
 TOTAL 54   

 

35.7 Related party transactions 
The Council is rendering information technology services to both Emfuleni and Midvaal local municipalities. Claims towards 
actual salary expenses have been lodged on a monthly basis whereby the cost incurred for the year was as follow: 

Emfuleni Local Municipality  R 5,571,506 
Midvaal Local Municipality R    981,710 
 
The Local Municipalities is rendering Municipal Health services on behalf of the Sedibeng District Municipality. The expenses 
incurred amounts to R 15,945,521 as shown in note 24 (specialist services). 
 
Councillors and specifically the Executive Mayor and Speaker remuneration in terms of the government gazette are shown 
separately in note 19. 
 
Section 57 employees’ (Key Management) remuneration packages are shown separately in note 18. Section 57 employees are 
required to enter into an annual performance contract where pre-determined objectives are linked to the integrated 
development Plan. Councillors and all officials must annually declare their interests and the interest of close family members to 
Council. 
 
Audit Committee members have received an allowance of R 171,000 for the year under review. 
 
The Council is in the process of establishing a State Owned Company (SOC), “The Vaal River City Tourism Promotion 
Company SOC” which will operate as a municipal entity to render the local tourism function. The CIPC Commissioner has 
registered the entity taking effect as from 30 August 2013, however, the establishment of the entity as per section 84(2) MFMA 
have as yet not been concluded and operations were not undertaken in terms of sections 85 through to 104 MFMA and hence 
there are no further disclosures to be made in terms of section 92 MFMA for the year ended 30 June 2014. 
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36. Accumulated surplus 

Ring-fenced internal funds within accumulated surpl us - 2014 
Government Grant Reserve  Movement of 

ring-fenced 
internal funds  

Total  

Opening balance  2,130,690   2,130,690 
Offsetting of depreciation  (533,780)   (533,780) 
Capital grants used to purchase property, plant and equipment  243,153   243,153 
Asset Disposal (2,372) (2,372)
  1,837,691   1,837,691 

 

Ring-fenced internal funds within accumulated surpl us - 2013 
   

Government Grant Reserve  Movement of 
ring-fenced 

internal funds  

Total  

Opening balance  2,691,831   2,691,831 
Offsetting of depreciation  (582,965)   (582,965) 
Capital grants used to purchase property, plant and equipment  37,281   37,281 
Asset Disposal  (15,457)   (15,457) 
  2,130,690   2,130,690 
 

37.  Finance Lease Obligation 

Minimum lease payments due 
      

- Within one year     263,779   263,779 
- in second to fifth year inclusive     43,963   307,742 
      

     307,742   571,521 
Less: future finance charges   (17,083) (55,423)
Present value of minimum lease payment   290,659 516,098
 
 

 

Non-Current   43,460 290,659
Current  247,199 225,439
  290,659 516,098
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38. Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Am ounts 
Budget on Accrual Basis        

Figures in Rand  Approved 
budget Adjustments Final Budget 

Actual 
amounts on 
comparable 

basis 

Difference 
between final 
budget and 

actual 

% Variance 

Explanation of 
Significant Variances 

greater than 10% versus 
Budget 

Statement of Financial Performance for the 2013/14 financial period 

Revenue         
Revenue from exchange transactions    

Sale of goods  2,808,000 -34,805 2,773,195 3,661,592 888,397 32.04% 

More collected than 
budget due to an increase 
in demand for aviation fuel 

at the Vereeniging 
Aerodrome 

Rental of facilities and equipment  9,103,570 -17,468 9,086,102 8,928,134 -157,968 -1.74%  

Income from agency services  7,307,390 -835,068 6,472,322 6,553,216 80,894 1.25%  

Licenses and permits  65,854,802 -900,000 64,954,802 58,520,058 -6,434,744 -9.91% 

Two testing station were 
closed for renovations by 

the Department of 
Transport in order to 

became compliant which 
resulted in loss of revenue 

Other income - (rollup)  2,781,569 19,370,751 22,152,320 1,101,699 -21,050,621 -95.03% 

Emergency Medical 
Services unfunded portion 

was expected to be 
resolved. The outstanding 
amount is currently being 

escalated to higher 
authorities to resolve 

Interest received - investment  2,060,000 40,084 2,100,084 1,607,476 -492,608 -23.46% 
Loss of revenue due to 
temporarily closure of 

testing stations. Reduced 
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38. Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Am ounts 
Budget on Accrual Basis        

Figures in Rand  Approved 
budget Adjustments Final Budget 

Actual 
amounts on 
comparable 

basis 

Difference 
between final 
budget and 

actual 

% Variance 

Explanation of 
Significant Variances 

greater than 10% versus 
Budget 

interest rates and less 
money to invest. 

Total revenue from exchange 
transactions  89,915,331 17,623,494 107,538,825 80,372,175 -27,166,650   

       
Revenue from non-exchange transactions   
Taxation revenue         
Government grants & subsidies  260,552,000 -  260,552,000 254,076,689 -6,475,311 -2.49%  
Total revenue  350,467,331 17,623,494 368,090,825 3 34,448,864 -33,641,961     

        
Expenditure         
Personnel  -195,574,243 -4,732,682 -200,306,925 -200,806,522 -499,597 0.25%  
Remuneration of councillors  -10,579,993 -354,455 -10,934,448 -10,709,156 225,292 -2.06%  

Depreciation and amortisation  -23,265,556 -4,523,600 -27,789,156 -28,018,728 (229,572) 0.11%  

Finance cost    -38,380 (38,380)   

Debt impairment  -  -66,600 -66,600 -66,567 33 -0.05%  

Public Participation  -160,540 150,000 -10,540 -8,450 2,090 -19.83% 

Spending was based on 
specific need identified 
and cost containment 
measure implemented 
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38. Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Am ounts 
Budget on Accrual Basis        

Figures in Rand  Approved 
budget Adjustments Final Budget 

Actual 
amounts on 
comparable 

basis 

Difference 
between final 
budget and 

actual 

% Variance 

Explanation of 
Significant Variances 

greater than 10% versus 
Budget 

Repairs and maintenance  -4,495,894 76,372 -4,419,522 -4,316,120 103,402 -2.34%  
Contracted Services  -39,560,241 268,786 -39,291,455 -36,818,234 2,473,221 -6.29%  
Grants and subsidies paid  -16,013,158 4,868,000 -11,145,158 -11,145,127 31 0.00%  
General Expenses  -60,687,929 -10,231,556 -70,919,485 -70,401,637 517,848 -0.73%  
Total expenditure  -350,337,554 -14,545,735 -364,88 3,289 -362,324,744 2,558,545     

Operating deficit  129,777 3,077,759 3,207,536 -27, 880,017 -31,087,553   

Loss on disposal of assets and 
liabilities  50,000 20,000 70,000 -134,381 -204,381 -291.97% 

Loss on stolen vehicle has 
resulted in variance which 

was not anticipated 

                

Actual Amount on Comparable 
Basis as Presented in the Budget 
and Actual Comparative 
Statement  

179,777 3,097,759 3,277,536 -28,014,398 -31,291,934   
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